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Annual Report 2012

Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors, | hereby present the annual
report of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited for the year ended 30
June 2012.

OPERATION REVIEW

The year under review was a crucial year in our strategy optimisation,
business innovation and business restructuring. During the year,
the Group comprehensively readjusted our product mix, marketing
model conversion progress and other aspects. We further streamlined
our product lines and enhanced our products with proprietary core
technologies and intellectual property rights, namely the BlOenergy
functional textiles, multi-functional water generators and multi-
functional ionizers. We have duly optimised the human resource
system and structure, and made timely adjustments on our business
model, particularly the marketing mode. These enabled us to
form various promotion teams across the nation, which resulted in
stronger product promotions, stronger brand image and acceleration
of product sales. Optimising the operations management, the
Group has strengthened its business management, scaled up the
rectification and improvement of sale channels, fostered the R&D
on related technologies and quality management on our proprietary
products with intellectual property rights (i.e. BlOenergy functional
textiles, multi-functional water generators and multi-functional
ionizers), and enhanced the rectification and training for the
marketing team. As the bedrock of our future exploration to the
middle-aged market and our overall changes on business model, we
established our product base and marketing team force.

The Group recorded sales revenue of approximately HK$20.48
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$6.74 million
or 24.76% as compared with that of last year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to a drop of approximately HK$3.61 million and a
drop of approximately HK$3.94 million in revenue from the sales of
multi-functional water generators and the healthcare food products
respectively. The decrease in overall sale revenue was mainly due
to the unfashionable marketing mode and the keen competition.
The Group’s gross profit margin for the year was approximately
34.84% (2011: approximately 42.64%), representing a decrease of
approximately 7.80 percentage points from last year.
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS PROSPECT EKREE

— AWEREBK XIRABERS

1. Clarify product strategy and implement a large

scale of product mix adjustment

Since February 2012, the Group has formulated various explicit
and applicable operation strategies. On the product level, we
realised a strategy presented in a “3-layers concentric donut
chart” for product development. The inner circle represents our
core products, among which the BlOenergy functional textiles
are the emphasis ones. The series has various patents and is
granted as “Chinese famous-brand products” and “China well-
known trademark”, with its name earned as the leading brand
to establish the industry standard. For the second outer circle,
it represents the mid-level products, namely multi-functional
water generators and multi-functional ionizers. The Group has
accumulated approximately 190,000 sales of multi-functional
water generators and purifiers, with good reputation in the
industry and among the consumers. For the multi-functional
ionizers, we are in firm command of the core development
techniques of the products which are proved under the tests
of the authoritative departments are capable of achieving a
leading performance among the international standards: dispel
99% of PM2.5 and 80% of formaldehyde and emit highly
potent anion within 2 meters. Occupying the third outer circle
is our outer products, mainly the healthcare food products.
Among the international markets, the Group will import high-
quality products with reliable function, so as to diversify in our
healthcare food product range and boost the sales.

Escalate R&D process, strive for brand excellence
and enhance the quality

1.  The research and development process of BlOenery®
functional textiles has been paused for almost a decade.
Meanwhile, various counterpart industries, that used
to be lagged behind, have surpassed us and traditional
textile corporates have begun to enter the health care
functional textile market. The Group, though a top brand
of functional textiles in China ten years ago, has obviously
fallen behind. Nevertheless, with every endeavor we
made this year, the Group has restarted the research
and development programs and enhance the quality of
more than twenty different health care products. We also
introduced the impressive BlOenergy® 20th anniversary
edition sleeping series, which defines the ultra standard
in textile industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

For multi-functional water generators, we have speeded
up the progress of developing new products that conform
with the water quality in China and cater to the domestic
consuming habits. The Group owns the core technology
to produce as well as the intellectual property rights of the
product. As well-convinced that the product is capable
of competing against other international top brands, the
Group expects the product be launched to market in the
coming year.

The multi-functional ionizers. In the past, the multi-
functional ionizers were converted under the collaboration
between the Group and the air-conditioner fans
manufacturing factories, so the quality was beyond our
control. However, the stability, quality and design of
the products are believed to be enhanced through the
planned establishment of self-owned assembly workshop,
and products assembled therein are expected to be
launched in the coming year.

Proactively import high-quality healthcare food products
with reliable function and original packing form countries
like USA or Australia. Various healthcare food products
imported during this year enjoyed a high level of
deployment within the market were sold-out in a very
short period of time.
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Elite products without intellectual property rights, or
without the edge to compete in global markets, were not
brand-supportive for Vitop — a brand which earned two honors,
“Chinese famous-brand products” and “China well-known
trademark”. Hence, it was impossible to maintain its sales
network, and the profitability of which was meaningless. It
was the ultimate reason for the rapid decrease in revenue and
profits in recent years. Through the aforementioned strategies
and adjustment schemes on product mix, the Group anticipates
that there will be a turning-point in respect of the current
passive situation in the next financial year.
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Chairman’s Statement

Pragmatically conduct swifts in marketing model,
dedicate to explore the middle-aged consumer
groups

It is on the Group’s schedule that, by the end of 2012, our
marketing model will be gradually shifted from the spoiling
“meeting market” channel or model to a strategy of conducting
showcases and exhibitions in counters and neighborhoods,
which rebuilds a brand new sales channel. Nine exhibitions
teams have commenced the “Vitop 20th Anniversary
Nationalwide Exhibition” across the nation with promising
success. Meanwhile, the Group has expedited the development
of electronic business and telemarketing business: Apart from
the re-adjustment on the internet sales via “Vitop eShop”,
the Group has commenced a flagship store on Taobao Mall.
We also planned to station at various e-Commerce platforms,
such as 360buy ( X&) , during the next financial year.
In additions, the Group has organised its own telemarketing
teams to perform telemarketing towards approximately 157,000
customers who have joined our membership. Last but not
least, the Group will maintain good relationships with overseas
distributers. We will regard the existing Thai distributer as our
major basis of overseas distributers. Subject to the completion
of the first stage of our product and elite strategy in Spring of
next year, we will step-up the exploration of overseas market.

Seeking for investment opportunities in different
industries that could enhance corporate
development and broaden the income base of the
Group

As disclosed in the announcement dated 12 August 2011
issued by the Company, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement on 2 August 2011 for the acquisition
of 90% shareholding in Express Time Enterprises Limited
(“Express Time”) at the consideration of HK$108,500,000, a
company which indirectly owns 74% interest in a piece of land
situated in Xuzhou City, Jiangsu, the People’s Republic of China
which can be used for commercial building development. The
proposed acquisition constitutes a major acquisition for the
Company.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement of 27 July 2012,
despatch of the circular for the aforesaid proposed acquisition
would be postponed to 22 November 2012. The Company is
currently in the process of preparing the circular, as additional
time is required to obtain the financial information (including
all audited and management accounts and related supporting
documents) of each of the past and current subsidiaries of
Express Time for the 3 financial years ended 31 December
2011 and for the 6 months ended 30 June 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Board is of the view that, notwithstanding the time lapse
since August 2011, the proposed acquisition will still be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole
when completed, since the Board expects that the commercial
building development on the land in Xuzhou will generate a
stable and long-term income for the Group.

Although there has been an extended delay in completing the
proposed acquisition, the Group has not incurred substantial
amount of costs or fees in relation thereto since August 2011.
Further, the extended delay is caused by the vendor’s failure
to timely provide the outstanding financial information as
aforementioned (despite repeated requests of the Company)
and which is not within the control of the Board. The Company
will continue to exert pressure on the vendor to obtain the
outstanding information in order to publish the circular and
complete the proposed acquisition as soon as possible.

APPRECIATION

As the joint chairman of the board of directors, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for their full understanding and
support during the hard-time. The Group’s steady growth in the
healthcare industry of the PRC over the past 20 years has relied on
the efforts and contributions of all our staff and partners. | believe,
with these supports, the experience and brand advantages built up
over these 20 years, and the dedication of all our shareholders and
staff, the Group will be able to keep abreast with the time and step
into another stage of development.

Han Xiao Yue
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2012
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded sales revenue of approximately HK$20.48
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$6.74 million
or 24.76% as compared with that of last year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the sale revenue from the
multi-functional water generators and the healthcare food products
approximately HK$3.61 million and approximately HK$3.94 million
respectively. The decrease in overall sale revenue was mainly due
to the unfashionable marketing mode and the keen competition.
The Group’s gross profit margin for the year was approximately
34.84% (2011: approximately 42.64%), representing a decrease of
approximately 7.80 percentage points from last year.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, provision for other receivables
of approximately HK$2.53 million was made after prudent review and
assessment of the current market valuation and the recovery of the
other receivables by the Board of the Group. For the sake of prudent
accounting treatment, the Board decided to make partial provision in
respect of other receivables.

The Group’s loss for the year amounted to approximately HK$20.04
million, representing a decrease of 14.72% when compared to last
year (2011: loss of approximately HK$23.50 million). It was mainly
attributable to the decline in the impairment loss of other receivables
amounted to approximately HK$2.53 million.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the disposal
of the entire registered and paid-up capital of R KEHFHEH
FRZ\ 7], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company for a
total cash consideration of RMB90,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$108,000). The disposal resulted in a loss on disposal amounted
to approximately HK$0.62 million.
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2012, the Group employed a total of 107 (2011: 153)
employees, of which 103 were deployed in Mainland China (2011:
147) and 4 (2011: 6) were deployed in Hong Kong. The total salaries
(excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year was approximately
HK$10.17 million (2011: approximately HK$13.33 million).
Remuneration packages comprised salary, mandatory provident fund,
bonus, medical allowance and share options.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND
MANAGEMENT

The majority of the Group’s operations are located in Mainland
China, and the main operational currencies are Hong Kong Dollars
and Renminbi. The Company pays regular and active attention
to Renminbi exchange rate fluctuation and consistently assesses
exchange risks.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCE

As at 30 June 2012, the Group was in a net cash position and has
sufficient funding to pay off all the outstanding liabilities, and meet
its working capital requirement. The Group’s cash and bank balance
at that date amounted to approximately HK$41.24 million (2011:
approximately HK$10.95 million), which was denominated in mainly
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group had no outstanding
bank borrowing and no banking facilities available.

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s current ratio and quick ratio were
approximately 5.02 (2011: approximately 1.16) and approximately
4.14 (2011: approximately 0.79) respectively.

HK$30 million convertible notes were issued by the Company on 29
September 2010 at conversion price of HK$0.25 per share, with the
conversion dates as follows:-

On 19 December 2011, approximately HK$7.53 million convertible
notes were converted at HK$0.25 per share.

On 31 March 2012, approximately HK$22.47 million convertible
notes were converted at HK$0.25 per share.
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCE

(continued)

On 31 May 2011, the Company has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 9.09% of the issued share capital
of Global Trade Center Holdings Co. Limited. A total consideration
of HK$23.34 million for the acquisition was satisfied by issuing
93,360,000 ordinary shares at an issue price of HK$0.25 per share
of the consideration in sum of HK$23.34 million.

On 18 July 2011, the Company completed a right issue.
294,261,987 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for
every three Shares held were issue pursuant to the rights issue. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$70.10 million were for general
working capital.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Neither the Group nor the Company had any significant contingent
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to the coming year, the management expects
the overall business environment remain challenging given the
uncertainties arising from the possibility of downturn in Mainland
China’s macro-economy and highly unpredictable situations of global
economy. The Group will continue to be on the alert and modify
our existing business strategies to cope with the changing business
environment. The management will also closely monitor cash flow,
ever mindful of maintaining a strong cash position, which is of utmost
importance in these financially turbulent times.

To ensure growth is sustained over the long term, the Group will
continue to leverage its research and development expertise to
develop products desired by consumers. The Group has been
actively exploring new products this year and expecting these
products will bring favourable results for the Group in the coming
year. The Group continues to optimize its product mix and put more
efforts to develop high value-added products to improve its sales.

In the long term, the management expects different investments
in Mainland China will provide strong growth opportunities for
the Group. The Group is strengthening its expansion of business
network in Mainland China as part of the means to achieve long-term
sustainable growth.
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Management Discussion and
Analysis

PROSPECTS(Continued)

The Group also adopted measures and exploring other means to
meet these challenges and to turn them into opportunities. The
management will from time to time seek for investment opportunity
in difference industry that could enhance corporate development and
broaden the income base of the Group. Meanwhile, the management
will continue to review the performance of existing businesses and
seek for any investment opportunity in fast growing industry. Should
any suitable business opportunity arise, the Group may change its
existing business activities and redeploy any assets of the Group. The
management remains cautiously optimistic about perpetuating the
Group’s steady growth over the long term.
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Report of the Directors

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Vitop Bioenergy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing and trading
of multifunctional water generators, BlOenergy products, healthcare
food products and other healthcare products in the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau.

RESULT AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at that date are set
out in the audited financial statements on pages 34 to 119.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend to
shareholders of the Company for the years ended 30 June 2012 and
2011 respectively.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 120. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 14 to the audited
financial statements.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of the movement in the Group’s intangible assets during the
year is set out in note 15 to the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are
set out in notes 28 and 29 to the audited financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 30 to the audited financial statements,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2012, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands, amounted
to approximately HK$101.62 million. This includes the Company’s
share premium account, in the capital amount of approximately
HK$174.78 million as at 30 June 2012, which may be distributed
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium account may also be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Report of the Directors

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the percentage of sales to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 16.56% of the
Group’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 4.79%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
27.47% of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 8.82%.

To the best knowledge of the directors, neither the directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during the
year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman)

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint Chairman)
Mr. Xu Nian Chun

Ms. Guo Yan Ni

Mr. Long Min Fei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua

Mr. Zhang Wen

Mr. Li Xin Zhong

In accordance with article 87(1) of the article of association of the
Company, Mr. Han Qing Yun and Mr. Zhang Wen will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Han Qing Yun and Mr. Zhang Wen being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 25 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Han Qing Yun, Dr. Han Xiao Yue, Mr. Xu Nian Chun,
Ms. Guo Yan Ni, Mr. Long Min Fei, Ms. Zhu Jing Hua, Mr. Zhang
Wen and Mr. Li Xin Zhong, has not entered into a director’s service
agreement with the Company. They are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company. Either the Company or they
may terminate the appointment by giving a least three months’ notice
in writing.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the audited financial statements
under the heading “Related Party Transactions”, there were no
other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interests, whether or any directly or indirectly subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:—
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the R&EXATIRGRMEMKROHIEFR
Company
Number of
underlying
shares held Approximate
Number of pursuant to percentage
Name of directors Capacity shares held share options Aggregate of interest
R FR AR
BHEBHER @;hEa
EEkR 53 FrisRR i 8 B Eir®E st B
Han Qing Yun Interest of controlled 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 15.38%
corporation (note 1)
BEE REEEB N E S (PFEEL)
Han Xiao Yue Interest of controlled 3,805,112 - 3,805,112 0.29%
corporation (note 2)
PR R EE R (FfF3E2)
Note 1: FEEEL -

181,843,836 shares held by Wide Cosmos International Holdings Co Ltd
which is beneficially owned by Mr. Han Qing Yun. Mr. Han Qing Yun also
personally holds 18,156,164 shares in the Company.

Note 2:

There 3,805,112 shares are owned by Portton Investments Limited
(“Portton”), the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Dr. Han
Xiao Yue (the joint-chairman of the Company) and Mr. Wang Jian Dong as to
66.67% and 33.33% respectively. Each of Dr. Han Xiao Yue and Mr. Wang
Jian Dong are deemed to be interested in these 3,805,112 shares under Part
XV of the SFO. Portton is wholly owned by Power Field International Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of the directors
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fee is subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors or its remuneration committee with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 29
to the audited financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 29 to the
audited financial statements.
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Report of the Directors ERSHREE
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION OF BEFEHFRPEFRHFIEI36MK

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER AFFENELCMAATZEN
PERSONS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER TERX "Hfit A Ltz
KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO R#%X#&

As at 30 June 2012, so far as the directors of the Company are RZ_-ZE—_FXA=1+H AR REEMH
aware of and having made due enquires, the interests and short R{EHE%E @ IRIEEH & HI S 1565 5533615
positions of the substantial shareholders/persons (other than the ZBTFHFENZELMATREE KRR ZEFAIG
directors of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of FEAXE A LTHERRQ TG KD
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under HEARERZRABIT :

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the WAATRMREMBRGHIFE
company

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held Aggregate interest
B
w4 Sin sl ® B #at B
Wide Cosmos International  Beneficial owner (Note 1) 181,843,836 181,843,836 13.08%
Holdings Co. Ltd. EmBEBAA (L)
Wang Jing Beneficial owner 66,800,000 66,800,000 4.80%
Fi5 EmEA
Beijing Securities Limited Beneficial owner 104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
(Note 2)
(FFEE2) EmAA
Premium Castle Limited Interest in controlled 104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
(Note 2) corporation
(FFzE2) B 52 VK B B R
Lo Ming Chi Charles Interest in controlled 104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
(Note 2) corporation
(FFzE2) A E R =
Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest in controlled 104,760,925 104,760,925 7.53%
(Note 2) corporation
(FMF#E2) A E R e
Global Trade Center eneficial owner 93,360,000 93,360,000 6.71%

B
Holdings Co. Limited EnlEAA
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Note 1:

Wide Cosmos International Holdings Co Ltd is beneficial owned by Mr. Han
Qing Yun, the chairman of the Company.

Note 2:

The 104,760,925 shares were held by Beijing Securities Limited, which was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Premium Castle Limited. The issued share capital
of Premium Castle Limited was held as to 39% by Suen Cho Hung, Paul and
as to 36.28% by Lo Ming Chi Charles.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, no person, other
than the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the
section “Director’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, had an interest or a short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS ‘INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
directors of the Company is interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares are required under the Listing
Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive director the annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company based
on such confirmation, considers that the three independent non-
executive directors of the Company are independent as at the date of
this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited as the
Company’s auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Han Xiao Yue
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 September 2012

“-"FFH

B ZBE

ARBNZBERE (FE) GIOFEHHMAE
RAREMER ENEEBRLEEEEE
T-BAREMNZETRR(BFE) GFTEEHR
BRABBARBZHENNRZRBREE
BRBFAGLER-

REEES

HETE
mRR

BE —_E——FhLA-1+NH

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMZEBRBERAF

21



22

Annual Report 2012
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Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Han Qing Yun (8B &) , aged 53, is an executive director and
chairman of the Company. Mr. Han joined the Group in April 2008.
Mr. Han graduated from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
in 1998. Mr. Han is a highly successful entrepreneur in Mainland
China and has substantial experience in enterprise operations and
management. He currently also acts as the chairman of Guangdong
Bo Ao Hong Ji Investment Company Limited. Previous to this, he was
the chairman of his own founded Tai Gu Real Estate Development
Company Limited and responsible for the operation of that company
for years.

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (8BEHR ), aged 50, is an executive director
and joint chairman of the Company. Dr. Han joined the Group in
April 2007. Dr. Han holds a Bachelor Degree of Computer Science
from Tsinghua University, Beijing and a PhD in Finance from the
University of Texas, the United States. He has over 21 years’ of
experience in investment banking and has worked for multi-national
securities firms such as Merrill Lynch and Societe Generale. He
has involved actively in large-scale investment projects in Mainland
China and has rich experience in investment management. Dr. Han
had been appointed as an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Sino Gas Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is well-versed with the operation and management of
the listed company.

Ms. Guo Yan Ni (3B#E#E ) , aged 43, is an executive director of
the Company. Ms. Guo joined the Group in April 2008. Ms. Guo
graduated from the Zhanjiang Ocean University and majoring in
finance and accounting. Ms. Guo has years of experience in financial
and accounting and financial management. She acted as the
treasurer in the finance department of the Huazhou City Agricultural,
Industrial and Commercial Supply Company, and acted as the
financial controller of the finance department the Guangzhou Yayuan
Real Estates Company Limited for years.

Mr. Long Ming Fei (BEBA#R) , aged 40, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Long joined the Group in April 2008. Mr.
Long graduated from Industrial and Civil Construction Department
of South China University of Technology in 1994 and is an
intermediate engineer. Mr. Long has years of experience in corporate
management. He has been the manager of cost management
department in Guang Dong Yitao Group Co., Ltd. and became the
manager of investment department in Guang Dong Yitao Group Co.,
Ltd. since 2008.
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Biography of Directors and Senior
Management

Mr. Xu Nian Chun (##&#), aged 67, is an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Xu joined the Group in April 2008. Mr. Xu
graduated from the Nanjing University of Chemical Technology and is
a senior engineer. He has engaged in the management of petroleum
and chemical systems for years and has substantial experience in
management. He acted as the general manager of Southern China
Supply Company of the Ministry of Chemical Industry and was
awarded for his substantial contributions by the State Council. He
currently acts as the deputy chairman of Shenzhen China Petroleum
Tong Da Company CZREIISRiREARAT) .

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Xin Zhong (FE#H) , aged 54, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since February
2008. After graduating from Nankai University in 1983 with a degree
in Economics, Mr. Li spent seven years working in Mainland China
as a lecturer, part-time lawyer and the deputy general manager
of a consulting firm in Tianjian before receiving his LL.M. degree
at the University of London in 1991. Mr. Li joined Miramar Group
as an advisor of China affairs in 1992 and then joined Peregrine
Capital Limited in 1993 and became a director in 1996. He spent
two years with Alta Capital (H.K.) Limited as an executive director
before joining BNP Paribas Peregerine Capital Limited in 2000 as
an executive director. He joined Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance
Limited in 2003 as a director and then joined DBS Asia Capital
Limited as China Team Head of Mergers and Acquisitions in June
2004 responsible for origination of China related corporate finance
transactions. He is currently a director and senior consultant of
shenzhen Sino-Source Investment Consulting Company. Mr. Li has
over 18 years of experience in corporate finance.

Mr. Zhang Wen (383 ), aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since April
2008. Mr. Zhang graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a master of business and administration and from the postgraduate
class of the postgraduate department of the Shenzhen University.
From 2006 till now, he has been the deputy general manager of New
Smart Energy Group Limited. Previous to this, he was the deputy
president of China Natural Oil And Gas Co., Ltd. and the managing
director of Poliwell International Limited for years and accumulated
substantial experience in corporate management.
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Biography of Directors and Senior
Management

Ms. Zhu Jing Hua (%§$2), aged 70, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company since April
2008. Ms. Zhu graduated from the Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics and became a senior accountant in October 1992.
She was approved as a chartered accountant by the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in April 1994. She has worked for
the Ministry of Chemical Industry, holding positions of the deputy
director and the director of the production for outlet and supply
and marketing department of the Ministry of Chemical Industry, the
deputy chief of the Bureau of Economics of the Ministry of Chemical
Industry, the chief of the Bureau of Finance of the Ministry of
Chemical Industry, the deputy chief accountant of State Bureau of
Petroleum and Chemical Industries. She currently acts as the deputy
president of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Association.
From 2002 till now, she has acted as an independent director of
Guizhou Chitianhua Co., Ltd.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Jia Yao (EXKME), aged 46, rejoined the Group in May 2008
as an administrative vice general manager of Vitop Bioenergy (China)
Limited and is responsible for the Group’s marketing and promotion,
corporate planning and staff training. Mr. Li was re-designated as
a general manager of Vitop Bioenergy (China) Limited in February
2012 and is responsible of the Group’s overall business in Mainland
China. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from Wuhan University
and a Master Degree in Communication from Xiamen University.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Li has been appointed as the president
of Beijing Genecare Biotechnology Limited and Beijing Genecare
Water Treatment Technology Co., Limited, two renowned corporates
in Mainland China. Meanwhile, Mr. Li has been the consultant
experts of various famous China corporates. Mr. Li has accumulated
substantial experience in corporate management as well as strategy
planning and management for the health care products related
market.

Mr. Liu Yi Song (8]—#), aged 68, is the general manager of
Hefei Vitop Meiling Environmental Technologies Co., Ltd (& ER 4
EZEIRR) (“Vitop Meiling”), a subsidiary of the Company, and is
a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Liu joined the Group in
April 2004 and is responsible for the management of Vitop Meiling.
He graduated from the Department of Management Engineering of
Hefei university of Technology in 1984. Prior to Joining the Group, he
had over 22 years of experience in business management.
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Biography of Directors and Senior
Management

Mr. Yeung Man, Simon (##8 ) , aged 40, is the financial controller
of the Group. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in November 2004 and
is responsible for the financial and internal control of the Group.
He graduated from the University of Georgia, the United States
of America with a Bachelor degree in Accounting and a Bachelor
degree in Finance and Banking. Mr. Yeung is an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in an international accounting
firm. He has over 15 years of experience in auditing, finance,
accounting and business management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establishing and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. The directors of the Company
believe that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximising shareholders’ interests.

During the year, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the deviations from code provisions A.1.1,
A.4.1 and E.1.2 as stated and explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers at set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code for
securities transactions by Directors. All members of the Boards have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman)

Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint-Chairman)
Mr. Xu Nian Chun

Ms. Guo Yan Ni

Mr. Long Min Fei

Independent Non-executive Director
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua

Mr. Zhang Min

Mr. Li Xin Zhong
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and shall be collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board formulates overall strategies and
polices of the Group and monitors the performance and activities
of the management. With delegating authorities from the Board,
the management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group under the leadership of the Joint Chairman.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Joint Chairman.

Under code provision A.1.1 of the Code, at least four regular
board meetings should be held a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of directors of the
Company, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication. As the Company did not announce its quarterly
results, two regular board meetings were held during the year
for reviewing and approving the interim and annual financial
performance of the Group. Board meetings will be held on the
occasions when board decisions are required.

During the year, three full board meetings (including two regular
board meetings) were held and the individual attendance of each
director at the board meetings was as follows:

Directors Attendance
Executive Directors

Mr. Han Qing Yun (Chairman) 2/5
Dr. Han Xiao Yue (Joint Chairman) 5/5
Mr. Xu Nian Chun 2/5
Ms. Guo Yan Ni 2/5
Mr. Long Min Fei 2/5
Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhu Jing Hua 2/5
Mr. Zhang Wen 2/5
Mr. Li Xin Zhong 2/5
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moBEE 2/5
ML 2/5
RERASE A4 2/5
BIUFMTESE

REFERL 2/5
RN KL 2/5
FHPEE 2/5
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For a regular board meeting, notice of at least fourteen days is given
to all directors of the Company, who are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion, and an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent to all directors of the Company
at least three days before the intended date of a regular board
meeting.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by the secretary of the Company and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director of the
Company. Draft and final versions of minutes of board meetings are
sent to all directors of the Company for their comment and records
respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the board
meeting is held.

Approximate insurance cover has been arranged in respect of legal
action against the directors and officers of the Group.

Non-executive Directors

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and be subject to re-election.

The three independent non-executive directors of the Company
were not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Ms. Zhu Jing Hua,
Mr. Zhang Wen and Mr. Li Xin Zhong.

The role and function of the remuneration committee primarily
include reviewing, considering and approving proposals as well as
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure relating to the remuneration of directors and senior
management.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

The Board is empowered under the articles of association of the
Company to appoint any person as a director of the company either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. No
nomination committee was established by the Company in view of
the small size of the Board. The Board as a whole is responsible
for considering the suitability of an individual to act as a director of
the Company, and approving and terminating the appointment of a
director of the Company.

The executive directors of the Company are responsible for
selecting and recommending suitable candidates for members of
the Board based on their characters, qualifications, experience
and background, when there is a vacancy or an additional director
is considered necessary. The recommendations of the executive
directors are then put forward for consideration by the Board.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditors, Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited, is set out
as follows:

Nature of Services

AR
FEZIRT

Audit services
Non-audit services
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HK$'000
THET

700
541

Total: BEt
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the company was established on 18 January
2002 with written terms of reference which were revised on 21
March 2005 in compliance with the code provision C.3.3 of the
Code. The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Ms. Zhu Jing Hua
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Li Xin Zhong and Mr. Zhang Wen.
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management expertise as
required under rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the audit committee include the review and
supervision of the financial reporting process and internal control
system, and the review of the interim and annual reports of the
Group.

During the year, two meetings were held by the audit committee to
review the annual report of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2012 and the interim report of the Group for the six months ended
31 December 2011 before submission to the Board for approval, and
to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The individual
attendance of each member at the audit committee meetings was as
follows:

Members Attendance
Ms. Zhu Jing Hua 1/2
Mr. Li Xin Zhong 1/2
Mr. Zhang Wen 1/2

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE ACCOUNTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2012.

The statement by Messrs. Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited, the
existing external auditors of the Company, about their reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 32 and 33.
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As at 30 June 2012, the directors of the Company confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company have prepared the
accounts of the Group on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets. The
internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and the
management rather than elimination of risks associated with the
business activities of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and encourage their participation.

The directors of the Company host the annual general meeting each
year to meet the shareholders and answer their enquires.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the Chairman of the Board
should attend, and the chairman of the audit and remuneration
committees should be available to answer questions at, the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee
and remuneration committee were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2011 in
person, but the Chairman of the Board has already delegated to one
of the executive directors of the Company to chair the meeting on his
behalf and on behalf of the chairman of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vitop
Bioenergy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to
119, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30 June 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
20/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,

Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 28 September 2012

Chan Kin Wai
Practising Certificate Number PO5342
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Consolidated Statement of ezl ®
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_T——FXA=1+HLFE

2012 2011
—E—_% —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET T T
Revenue R 6 20,484 27,217
Cost of sales SHERA (13,348) (15,612)
Gross profit EA 7,136 11,605
Other income H g A \ 6 3,739 6,834
Selling and distribution costs HE R #HAAR (7,142) (11,301)
Administrative expenses THEEEA (18,161) (21,805)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —fEH B AR R EE (623) -
Other operating expenses EmgzER (3,307) (7,081)
Loss from operating activities T E R 7 (18,358) (21,748)
Finance costs B > 8 (1,648) (1,754)
(20,006) (23,502)
Share of loss of associate FEGHE & A REE 19 (33) -
Loss before income tax expense MRETIST A RIEE (20,039) (23,502)
Income tax expense Frisfimx 9 - -
Loss for the year KEFEHIE (20,039) (23,502)
Attributable to: T AL
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ TSN 10 (19,860) (23,315)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR = (179) (187)
Loss for the year AEEEIE (20,039) (23,502)
Loss per share attributable to FARARAAEE A
owners of the Company EiEEREE
during the year 12
Basic K HK (1.58) cents #fll  HK (2.55) cents &1l
Diluted #E N/A FiE H N/A 7~ F
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2012

—E-CEEH
ez EKER

BE_ZT——FRNA=THLFE

2012 2011
—E——F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
Loss for the year REEEE (20,039) (23,502)
Other comprehensive income H b2 =
Exchange translation differences BEERERERZ
recognised directly in equity fEH =58 (1,682) 2,420
Release of translation reserve upon 7 H & M B A &) B 82
disposal of a subsidiary BmERE 413 -
(1,269) 2,420
Total comprehensive loss AEEEHEBRE
for the year, net of tax R FRIE (21,308) (21,082)
Total comprehensive loss THATEEZEER
attributable to: HaEE
Owners of the Company KRARER A (21,129) (20,895)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 A A 2 (179) (187)
(21,308) (21,082)
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

As at 30 June 2012

FEeMERRAER

RZE—=—FA=+H

36

2012 2011
—E—_%F —EF——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#xT F&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N 14 2,370 3,183
Intangible assets mVEE 15 258 295
Available-for-sale investments AIHEIREEE 18 28,596 19,260
Interests in associate REEE R BIR D 19 3,595 -
34,819 22,738
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 18,561 21,070
Trade receivables B 5 UER X 21 1,355 1,283
Deposits, prepayments and e FERRIER
other receivables H i & B BR 3K 22 44,579 31,612
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHES 23 41,236 10,950
105,731 64,915
Current liabilities B R=Ri
Trade payables E 5 EMNERR 24 6,175 3,813
Accrued liabilities and EitaER
other payables H 4th B BE 3R 5,616 14,161
Deposits received BWET & 9,279 9,404
Obligation under finance lease MmEMECEMR
— current portion —REEH 25 - 51
Convertible notes AR R IE 26 - 27,739
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAE 27 - 654
21,070 55,822
Net current assets RBEEFEE 84,661 9,093
Net assets EESFE 119,480 31,831

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of FEMERAE
Financial Position
As at 30 June 2012 R-ZZE——FA=1+H

2012 2011
—®—_—%F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000
THR TAETT

EQUITY =

Equity attributable to owners of ZERQTEHE ABLES
the Company

Share capital Ji% < 28 34,760 22,070
Reserves M 30 82,811 7,673
117,571 29,743
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,909 2,088
Total equity 48 R 2% 119,480 31,831
Han Xiao Yue Guo Yan Ni
Director Director
EIEE AR
EFE 2

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 37
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Statement of Financial Position HMERAE

As at 30 June 2012 R-_ZE——F<A=+H

2012 2011
—E—_% —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT FAETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEERAR
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A B A B B AE 2 16 13,000 13,000
Available-for-sale investments A EREIEE 18 26,186 16,850
39,186 29,850
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK B A A kI8 16 85,110 34,920
Deposits, prepayments and Ale BRFIER
other receivables H b fE UK BR 3Kk 22 15,196 1,753
Cash and bank balances We MFE1THET 23 1,352 26
101,658 36,699
Current liabilities mENAR
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfTHHT B A A kI8 16 4,111 4111
Accrued liabilities and EETafEk
other payables H b JE A BR 3X 350 721
Convertible notes Al % 26 - 27,739
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 27 - 654
4,461 33,225
Net current assets mENEERE 97,197 3,474
Net assets EERE 136,383 33,324
EQUITY #a
Share capital % < 28 34,760 22,070
Reserves 1 30 101,623 11,254
Total equity HEs 136,383 33,324
Han Xiao Yue Guo Yan Ni
Director Director
BRE EiEg
BE E
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Consolidated Statement of FEHRERER
Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_T——FXA=1+HLFE

2012
—E—_F

HK$’000
THx

2011
—F——F
HK$'000
TAT

RERBOHRERE

Cash flows from operating
activities

Loss before income tax expense BrFTS T L AT 18 (20,039) (23,502)
Adjustments for: ERTHSEELAE:
Interest income LB WA (27) (77)
Depreciation e 776 1,376
Amortisation of intangible assets EmEEHH 37 37
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWE  HE &
and equipment HENEE 13 144
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMKBARMEER 623 -
Impairment loss recognised in TE S EYBRFER M
respect of trade receivables BEEE - 594
Impairment loss recognised in A HEREHE B BRH
respect of available-for-sale REE B

investment - 2,934
Impairment loss recognised in BLE b fE AR SR A

respect of other receivables VRN SR 2,530 2,590
Fair value loss on financial assets HBEBEAFEEER

designated at fair value through HI Sk ) 3k T 1 &Y

profit or loss WBEENRTEESE - (644)
Finance costs s 2 57
Other income H g A (1,240) -
Share of loss of associate il Rl/NS = 33 -
Operating loss before working RETEEESEFHW

capital changes K E R (17,292) (16,491)
Decrease in inventories &R 2,103 571
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE W AR FIE (97) (794)
Increase in deposits, prepayments i & - FEfT A &

and other receivables H b & Y5 BR B8 0 (15,590) (7,888)
Decrease in pledged deposit 2R 17 ZOR - 20
Increase/(decrease) in E S EMNERR

trade payables o, O d) 2,452 (9,002)
(Decrease)/increase in accrued EETaEREMENERER

liabilities and other payables (W A),/#an (5,490) 4,029
(Decrease)/increase in deposits BWET &

received CRd) /1 (125) 36
Cash used in operations KEDHAMNRE (34,039) (29,519)
Interest paid B F A 2) (57)
Net cash used in KRBT

operating activities BERABEEFEE (34,041) (29,576)

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of FEHRERER
Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_T——FXA=1+HLFE

2012 2011
—®—_—%F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
Cash flows from investing BRETEMNHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, BEWME BEK
plant and equipment Bai (5) (189)
Proceeds from financial assets upon B #% & & 2| #1685 #9
to maturity Fri8 k38 - 2,480
Invest in associate REGEERAINIEE (3,628) -
Interest received 2 FE 27 77
Net cash inflow on disposal of HE—HRBRREEN
a subsidiary REMAFRE 31 86 -

Net cash (used in)/generated from & EH (EH) ELH

investing activities e F (3,520) 2,368
Cash flows from financing METEBNHRERE

activities
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - (2,146)
Repayment of obligation under EHERmEHEEHR

finance lease 2E (51) (71)
Net proceeds from issue of BT BMRERD

convertible notes FTi8 508 %58 - 30,000
Net proceed from right issue MR EENMERIEFE 69,580 -
Net cash generated from BEEBE LW

financing activities Re FRE 69,529 27,783
Net increase in cash and ReRB&EEMEM

cash equivalents B8 31,968 575
Cash and cash equivalents at FINRERASEED

beginning of the year 10,950 8,662
Effect of foreign exchange rate EH#EHE

changes (1,682) 1,713

Cash and cash equivalents at FRNBSRBAESEED
end of the year 41,236 10,950

40 VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of GFeiaEgEnR
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_T——FXA=1+HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FLAARAARKERG

Retained
Capital Convertible  profits/ Non-
Share Share  Statutory redemption Capital Translation notes (Accumulated controlling

capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* losses)* Total interests
REME THE SFaf/

k& RBRAER* EEEHE B EERH ERRE REGH (RHER): a5 FnREG

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000  HKJ000  HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

T T B AL BT T iR T T Titn

At 1 July 2010 R_Z-%F
tE-H 22,070 56,260 8789 29 28,764 9,659 - (78,237) 47334 2275 49,609
Total comprehensive  AFE2EME
income for the year e - - - - - 2420 - (3315 (2089) (187)  (21,082)
Issue convertible notes ~ E/TATAREE - - - - - - 3,958 - 3,958 - 3,958

Deferred tax liabiliies ~ Ef7AIARZ &
on issue of convertible  EEHEEE
notes - - - - - - (654) - (654) - (654)

At 30 June 2011 RZE-——F

~AZTH 22,070 56,260 8,789 29 28,764 12,079 3304 (101,562) 29,743 2,088 31,831
At 1 July 2011 RZZ—-F
thA-H 22,070 56,260 8,789 29 28,764 12,079 3304 (101,552) 29,743 2,088 31,831
Total comprehensive  AEF2EME
income for the year et - - - - - (1,269) - (19800)  (21,129) (1790 (21,308)
Issue of shares BRihEs 9,690 69,207 - - - - - - 78917 - 78917
Converted convertible AR EH
notes into shares ERN KR 3000 30,344 - - - - (3,304) - 30,040 - 30,040

At 30 June 2012 RZE-Z§
~BEtH 34,760 155,831 8,789 29 28,764 10,810 - (121412)  117,5M 1,909 119,480

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * NEREBEBEFPEFEIHNEEHMBHRAESP
HK$82,811,000 (2011: HK$7,673,000) in the consolidated statement 82,811,000 T A (2 ——F:
of financial position. 7,673,000 7T) °

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
15 February 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company
withdrew the listing of its shares on The Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10 February 2003, and on
the same date, by way of introduction, listed its entire issued
share capital on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

The Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s principal place of business is Suites
3434-3436, 34/F Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing
and trading of BlOenergy products, healthcare food products,
multi-functional water generators and other healthcare products
in the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and
Macau (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to
119 have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2012 were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 28 September 2012.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following new
and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)  Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time

Adopters
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
Amendments Funding Requirement
Improvements to Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs 2010 HKFRSs issued in May 2010

Other than as further explained below, the adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect
on these financial statements.

HKAS 24 (Revised)Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of
related parties. The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical
view of related party relationships and clarify the circumstances
in which persons and key management personnel affect
related party relationships of an entity. The revised standard
also introduces an exemption from the general related party
disclosure requirements for transactions with a government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the reporting entity. The
accounting policy for related parties has been revised to reflect
the changes in the definitions of related parties under the
revised standard. The adoption of the revised standard did not
have any impact on the financial position of performance of the
group. Details of the related party transactions, including the
related comparative information, are included in note 35 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS32 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Presentation of items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

Offestting Financials Assets and
Financial Liabilities”

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS
9 and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial
Statements®
Joint Arrangements®

Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities®®
Fair Value Measurement®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine®

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

2. IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised)Related Party Disclosures

(continued)

(1)

2)

(3)

)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the revaluation of certain assets and liabilities. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement of
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from
the date that control ceases.

Subsidiaries

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the revaluation at fair
value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition
date, regardless of whether or not they were recorded
in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to
acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their fair values, which
are also used as the bases for subsequent measurement
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivables at the end of the reporting
period.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. FESTHEHME o)

3.3 Subsidiaries (continued) 33MEBAR (&)

Non-controlling interest represents the portion of the
profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to
equity interest that are not owned by the Group and are
not the Group’s financial liabilities.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity attributable to the owners of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the company
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

3.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

3.4
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued) 3.4 BEE RN T (&)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of the interest in
the associate that are not related to the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location
for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in
the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of consolidated comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment,
less any estimated residual values, over the following
estimated useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over
the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Machinery and equipment 8 to 12 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 8 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.6 UBEE

3.6 Financial assets

Financial assets other than hedging instruments are
classified into the following categories: loans and
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale financial assets and held-to
maturity investments.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case
of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred. At the end of each
reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
of such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
includes financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value

through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following

criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains

or losses on them on a different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial assets
is provided internally on that basis to the key

management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded derivative

that would need to be separately recorded.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. FESTHEHME o)

3.6 UBEE (&)

3.6 Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial assets is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment losses
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses on available-for-
sale equity investments will not reverse in profit or
loss in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investment, they are measured to
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the assets is impaired.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, is transferred
from equity to the statement of comprehensive income.
A provision for impairment is made for available-
for-sale equity investments when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In addition, the Group
evaluates other factors, such as the share price volatility.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through the statement

of comprehensive income.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Trade receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part

of the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets other
than those at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, the impairment

loss is measured and recognised as follows:

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERAERQA

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-F-—FAAS+ALFE

3. FEFHHEME o)

3.6 UBEE (&)

THEMBEE (&)

HWAHEEELRRE MBEH
PR (A0 BR AR (] AS 2 5 50 Je 3 86)
REERNAFENEZERNFEIN
ORR B 2 RS R R I
MEBRR ARZEBE2EK
BmR-HMAFEEREARITKRE
BEREKASAEMEERERRR
HERR(E - RIpL Al h ERA R E F
HWBERE BEERE BRE]X
[ 51 B &5 4F b T o b 9N R ER
B EEMEER MEERE D
BAAHERAT AR ERET
EEBEEKERED-

=), 1414

BHRRERSEEREXAEE
B B E BT S REAIEDT
EHBEE - B HREIRKERIA
B PR N 2K 122 88 5 X R0 AE ] JRH (B
B 1ERT 8 - st E B AR 5 RAE
MBI ESEE Y EEEXE
R ) 2 Ko 52 55 B AN A1 AT 3l iR BB 4
ER-

MBEERE

RERE R NEE R W IR
NFEFIER R I A% M 2k &5 18 1 Bt
BEE NHEERSFAERENT
BREE - mHRTALERE B
BEEBRAZTIIERE RFER



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on trade receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income of the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct materials, where
applicable, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less any
applicable selling expenses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Intangible assets and research and

development costs
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described
below in note 3.11. Amortisation commences when the
intangible assets are available for use.

Patents and technical know-how are recognised as
intangible assets and amortised on a straight line basis
over their useful lives.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
the statement of comprehensive income as they occur.
Costs that are directly attributable to the development
phase are recognised as intangible assets provided they
meet the following recognition requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset
is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Intangible assets and research and
development costs (continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources
are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of internally generated product
developments are recognised as intangible assets. They
are subject to the same subsequent measurement method
as externally acquired intangible assets.

Development costs recognised as intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax. Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, tax
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in the statement of comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the statement of comprehensive income, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents BI0RERBESEEY
BehReEEYRIERITRFHE
Re RITREM S EEE A
GRS EREES MR
HAA=—@ARAURNKHITE  MZ
LT & ] BERF KK AT AN B R A IR
¢ BEEEEHRAREBEM-

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.11 Impairment of assets .1 EBEERIE

ME- -BEIEE BEEERR
MEBARNEREETRER -

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

BEBRREENKREEBRAER
Yo o B8 9 BB 4 BN AR A B S o
A Ug O] 7R A S R T A AR R
AHERTEFREERNENRS
E-RNAEEREER EARK
RenENERARAMTRERTRE
RE -MERTRERARRTEE
RéeEREEEREREENS
TE R B RF A o

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

SAHEREM S HEEMELED
BERAER L THINEMEE
MEENBRESRA MNBIESE
Ren A& NEESRR (RS
ELBM)KREEATKEEEE H
itk - BB 40 & 8 BIE TTRE R A -
MORERSELEEMERETR

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit

level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units
is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash generating
unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.

E}to

PREEEEMERBERERTD
B BERReELENEETH
o EBEERAEKTERERER
P ELAR B A B R & AR AR S
BE (WMAEE) -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Impairment of assets (continued)

An impairment is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises.

3.12 Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the Retirement Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Retirement
Scheme. The assets of the Retirement Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the Retirement
Scheme except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when an employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the Retirement Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government of the PRC, subsidiaries of the Group
operating in the PRC are required to participate
in an employee pension scheme operated by the
relevant local government authorities in the PRC
and to make contributions for employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC.
Such contributions are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.

All employee services received in exchange for
the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. The value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any nonmarket vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income,
unless it qualifies for recognition as asset, with a
corresponding credit to share option reserve. If
vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply,
the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number
of share options expected to vest. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of share options
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. No
adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods is
made if fewer share options ultimately are exercised
than originally estimated.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(i) Share options granted to employees

Details of the accounting policy are set out in note

3.12 (ii).

(ii) Share options granted to customers/suppliers

Share options issued to customers/suppliers in
exchange for goods or services are measured at the
fair values of the goods or services received. The
fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised immediately as expenses, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

3.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional rights to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Convertible notes SRR EE

Convertible notes issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instruments. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to retain profits. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and are amortised
over the lives of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefits) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

3.17 Income recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i)  Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with the ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(ii)  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable; and

(iii) Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s
rights as a shareholder to receive payment is
established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBERBE )
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.18 Related parties .SEEAL
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if: WRAEAEBFHENALIE:
(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more (i) FEBR—ExZEFNTARE
intermediaries, the party: ARk
-~ controls, is controlled by, or is under common - THIANEBR WAEE
control with, the Group; or 122 ) B B AN £ @B 5 2L [A)

ZHAL K

—  has an interest in the Group that gives it - RAEEHAEZFEH
significant influence over the Group; or HAREEAEAERT

EHMAL

—  has joint control over the Group; - RAREEBEBERZEGE
AL
(i)  the party is an associate or a jointly controlled entity; (i) B—XKEE QR LR ZES
EEMAL:

(iii) the party is a member of the key management (il AAEBEXAJGRAIFEE
personnel of the Group or its parent; BAEMAL:

(iv) the party is a close member of the family or any (iv) A% )3k i) 1§ BT i 4 (] {8 A
individual referred to in (i) or (iii); NERBREHAL:

(v) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly (v) B (v)EFT At (£ 10 &
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which ANE o B fl - HEEE
significant voting power in such entity resides with, Bk BEKRE ﬁ“ﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁ
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iii) KWERNBEEBMHAL X
or (iv); or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the i) BAEBENAEBE /\iEI’J
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity ERNEENEENREF
that is a related party of the Group. BB R 12 4R ﬂﬁﬁ‘%ﬂﬂ’\]/\i o

Close family members of an individual are those family EANBERREREEREEZER

members who may be expected to influence, or be RSP EZBBANTZEEA

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the FENRKEKE -

entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party WBEA T 2EETE R E(TE

transaction when there is a transfer of resources or B RBEBEXSEEAABEAT

obligations between related parties. R5e
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Leases

(i)

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are changed to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current
liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the statement of comprehensive income
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Foreign currencies 3.20 Jh &
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong R RIABETER BLMAR
dollars (HK$), which is also the functional currency of the NAININEE -

Company.

In the separate financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.

In the consolidated financial statements, all separate
financial statements of subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities originally presented in a currency different from
the Group’s presentation currency, have been converted
into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rate at
the balance sheet date. Income and expenses have been
converted into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange rates do
not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been dealt with in the translation
reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Financial guarantee contract, provisions and

contingent liabilities

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtors fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivables for the
issuance of guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivables, an immediate expense is
recognised as investment in subsidiaries on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the income statement
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantee issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the current carrying amount, where appropriate.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability
where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliably. Possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
event(s) is also disclosed as a contingent liability unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHHERE o)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Dividends 32K E

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits or other
distributable reserves, where appropriate, within the
equity section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

4. T ESEHHE R A

(A) Judgements (A) ¥ &

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations as
discussed below, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(A) Judgements (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or
the event previously causing the impairment no
longer exists, the management has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may affect the asset value or
such event affecting the asset value has not been
in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Income taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(A) Judgements (continued)
(ii) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised,
based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax
group in which the deferred tax asset has been
recognised. A variety of other factors are also
evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that is probable that some portion or all of
the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised,
such as existence of taxable temporary differences,
tax planning strategies and the periods in which
estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and to the extent that there
is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available within the utilisation
periods to allow utilisation of the carry forward
tax losses, the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

(B) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(B) Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment test of assets

The management determines whether an asset
is impaired at least on an annual basis or
where an indication of impairment exists. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
management to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the assets and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Income taxes

The management reviews the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period and reduces the amount to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assets to be utilised. This requires an estimation
of the future taxable profits. Estimating the future
taxable profits requires the management to make
an estimate of the expected future earnings of the
Group and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of the earnings.

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value. The determination of the useful lives and
residual values involve management’s estimation.
The management assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and
equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such a difference may impact the
depreciation in the year the estimate is changed and
the future period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
(B) Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iv) Amortisation of intangible assets

The Company amortises its intangible assets on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
ranged from three to ten years, commencing from
the date on which the intangible assets are available
for use. The estimated useful life reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the company
intends to derive future economic benefits from its
intangible assets.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS 14
“Segment Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets
of segments (business and geographical) using a risks and
returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting
format was business segment. The application of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14.

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components of the
Group. These information are reported to and reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7EXE &

(A o#bm RE BERES

(A) Segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segment.
Head office and corporate expenses are not allocated to
individual segments.

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets,
intangible assets and current assets directly attributable
to each segment. All liabilities are allocated to unallocated
corporate liabilities.

The four reportable operating segments are listed as
follows:

(

) BlOenergy manufacturing and trading of
products: bedding products, underclothing
and body protection accessories
containing the BlOenergy
compound

(ii) Healthcare food trading of healthcare food
products: products, including polypeptide
products

(iii) Multi-functional  manufacturing and trading of
water generator:  multi-functional water generator

(iv)  Others: trading of other healthcare
products and others
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(A) Segment revenue, results, assets and
liabilities (continued)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, results and certain
assets, liabilities and expenditure information for the
Group’s business segments:

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

5. 7HERE @

T-—_FFR®

—_—

(A) oEWE -FE-EERAE
(1)
B E

TREFNAEEER D B

R

XEhETEE BERAXE

BlOenergy Healthcare Multi-functional
products food products water generators Others Consolidated
RERERR RERE SURRKE it
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
I%-Cf -5 Z8-Zf “5-F "8-2f “T-—F IB-If “T-F ZB-IF
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKSO000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR fEr TR TEr TRRT fEr TRRT TEr TR TEn
Revenue: BA:

Sales to external customer #AMRP#E 9,829 9,816 2122 6,660 4,658 8,069 3,275 2472 20484 27217
Segment result SBEE 206 (8% (09 @0 (20 %9 (2 6 6
Unallocated other income ~ E ik 2 BAA 3730 683
Unallocated expenses £ AEFEX (22,124)  (29,081)
Loss from operating mEEE

activities (18,391)  (21,748)
Finance cost BExH (1,648)  (1,754)
Loss before income tax R FTERER A B A

expense (20,039)  (23,502)
Income tax expense FEHRAY - -
Loss for the year sEEBR (20,039)  (23502)
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7HER =
(A) Segment revenue, results, assets and (A) oEkE= -XE - BEEREE
liabilities (continued) €-))
Business segments (continued) EHBHE (&)
BlOenergy Healthcare Multi-functional
products food products water generators Others Consolidated
RERERR) RERR ESTE Y £t ]

2012 a2 00 02 M1 N2 N1 M2
S$-CF CF-F I9-F CF-F D8-IF DT-F D90 CTF I3-IF

HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK$000
TR AT TER  TEr TER  TET  TRR AT TER Tin

Segment Assets oHEE 46,935 22,087 12,998 14,985 24,117 2017 15,642 hoe0 100,202 64,649
Unallocated assets FOREE 40,258 23,004
Total assets BEBE 140550 87,653
Segment liabilities ABER 9,026 19,508 2,500 13,236 6,535 17463 3,009 4910 21,070 55,117
Unallocated liabilities FoEEE - 705
Total liabilities BEHE 21,070 55,822

Other segment AttAREs:

information:
Depreciation g 216 604 - - - - - - 216 604
Unallocated amount of ~ RAEHESE
(epreciation 560 712
116 1376
Amortisation of BYEEZY
intangible assets - - 37 37 - - - - 3 37
Capital expenditure BRRY - % - - - - - - - 23
Unallocated amounts of ~ #AEEARERLE
capital expenditure 5 166
5 189
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(B) Geographical segments

()

A geographical analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers, certain asset and expenditure
information is not presented as the Group’s revenue and
assets in geographical segments other than the PRC are
less than 10% of the aggregate amount of all segments.

Information about major customers

The Group has a very wide customer base, and no single
customer contributed more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue for each of the years ended 30 June 2010 and
2011.

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

(A)

(B)

Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts where applicable. All
significant intra-group transactions have been eliminated
on consolidation.

Turnover made in the PRC is subject to value added tax
(“VAT") at a rate of 17% (“output VAT”). Such output VAT
is payable after offsetting VAT paid by the Company on
purchases (“input VAT").
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TEHERE @
(B) #EHZ

HRAKEZERD A (F B R
SR R EELSRER D EA
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wiEm DR B HINE P KK
s ABTEEMAXERDN-

C) FEXEFEH

AEEBRRAFTRERZOTLER
REBE-ZT-——_FR-_F——FRX
AZ+TRLFERF YEE-F
FEAEERGENI0%A £

6. WERkHEAMmEA
(A) YWz

Wak IR ARREMERXE 1
ERREEREZIM(WER)
BHHEERBERFE-MEEE
ABNEARZOREAE KRB RFE

R BIEVS A & EFBRIRLT % &
BRI ER ([$GEB]) ([HEE
BEF) - ZEHEEERENIKH
AARBERINHEER ([#

TRIZ(ER ) B8 -
Other Income (B) Hfttlr A
Group
&M
2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET T T
Interest income 2 WA 27 81
Reversal of accrued BOERY FHe
expenses/salaries 1,240 4516
Fair value gain on financial assets  #§E AL A FEVIER X
designated at fair value through HI s F 3 B 1B /Y
profit or loss PHEENSFEEYE - 645
Others Hih 2,472 1,592
3,739 6,834
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7. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7. REEBE

REBBRECHNERTIISE:

Loss from operating activities is arrived at after charging:

Group
*THEE
2012 2011
—=E—_—F =E ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration % 2560 B
Audit services EZRE 700 600
Non-audit services EEZRTE 541 240
Cost of inventories sold EHRFEXA 13,348 16,675
Staff costs 8 TR
Directors’ remuneration (note 13 (a)) EE5Me (ME13()) - 659
Wages and salaries ITELHS 9,137 11,876
Pension scheme contributions RIRE B R 1,037 1,455
10,174 13,990
Depreciation e 776 1,376
Amortisation of intangible assets* B EESE" 37 37
Operating lease charges in respect of BIE T MEFH
land and buildings EEHEAOR S 2,547 3,092
Impairment loss recognised BLE 5 e R SRR Y
in respect of trade receivables* WIEEE - 594
Impairment loss recognised L H A JE YER SR SR A
in respect of other receivables* B E R 2,530 2,590
Impairment loss recognised AL EREIRE
in respect of available-for-sale HRNEEBE"
investment* - 2,934
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BEREED
plant and equipment* BB 13 144

*

included in other operating expenses
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

8.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans wholly

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

8. MBEXH

Group
FEE

2012
—E—_F

HK$’000
THT

AREFABBEED

“-"FFH

2011
—ET——%F
HK$'000
T T

repayable within five years RITERF B - 24
Interest on finance leases BRERENF R 1 33
Interest on convertible notes Al EE AT B 1,647 1,697

1,648 1,754

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group

9. FIEHAX

HRANEERFRAEE BT BELRER

had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the Baf(ZZ2——F &) WITEED

year (2011: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof

during the year.

Current — PRC
Charge for the year

Group
*TEHE

2012
—E—_%

HK$’000
FT#T

BIE— P B
AEE X -

FRMNGEHEE  E 77 R RB R
M B IR O 4% AN 68 B 48 & K75 B B AR
BEROEAREREFANBREZADA
BERANEY RELESIMTE-

2011
—FT——4F
HK$'000
TET
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

9. FIE®HMEXZ @

BEAREATENMEHAIREE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

loss at applicable tax rates is as follows: BYEROT:
Group
x&EE
2012 2011
—E—_F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#ExT FAE T
Loss before income tax M FTS B AT A 18 (20,039) (23,502)
Tax at the applicable tax rates REAB RS ENTIA
(Note a) (H&Ea) (4,342) (5,130)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR IR AST RS2 3,753 1,606
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAEARRBANR G ZE - (15)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTR BB BB
z 589 3,539
Income tax expense FrisfAx - -
Notes: B 5E -
a.  The applicable rates are the rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in a. HERABXAAQRKREWMBARLEE

158 ET)‘HEE”‘“%E’J%R%"

10.LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 10. 8 AREEARLEE
THE COMPANY

which the Company and its subsidiaries operate.

7 4919,860,000/ T ( —F ——4F : 518
23,315,000 ) K AR 2 Bl HE B A (L
HABREET ARFTNTEBREANE
18 8 B3B8 49 55,898,000 7T ( —F ——
% [§51824,391,00058 7T ) °

Of the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$19,860,000 (2011: loss of
HK$23,315,000), a loss of approximately HK$5,898,000
(2011: loss of HK$24,391,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the years presented in these financial statements.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2012 of approximately HK$19,860,000 (2011:
HK$23,315,000) and the weighted average of 1,251,384,321
(2011: the weighted average of 914,301,420) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2012
has not been disclosed as there were no potential dilutive
shares in issue during that year.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2011
has not been disclosed as the potential shares arising from the
conversion of the Company’s convertible notes would decrease
the loss per share of the Group for the years and is regarded as
anti-dilutive.
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13.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

(A) Directors’ emoluments

The directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

B.EERTIEBREFEEN
<=

(A ESM=

REBELEDRUREE QR GRDE
6l EEMEWEN T

Group

xEE
2012 2011
—E—_%f —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ExT T IT
Fees e - -

Other emoluments: H A5 :
Salaries, allowances and Fe EHK

benefits in kind EWH &= = 648
Pension scheme contributions BIREET B - 11
- 659
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE

13.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.ZEERkAZEEaHEEN

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued) M€ e
(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (A) EEME (8
The emoluments of each director, on a named basis, REZ-_Z——FE T ——FK
for the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011 are set out A=1+BLEFE BuEfEHie
below: MEMRTMMT
Year ended 30 June 2012 BE_Z——_—FXRA=+HLEE
Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefits scheme
Director fees in kind contributions Total
R {3 BH&
EEWmS REHIG BB RR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET TH#T THETT T#ET
Han Qing Yun BEE - - - -
Han Xiao Yue R - - - -
Guo Yan Ni B - - - -
Long Min Fei BEAAR - - - -
Xu Nian Chun oA - - - -
Li Xin Zhong EF - - - -
Zhang Wen 094 - - - -
Zhu Jing Hua KEpE - - - -
Total 2012 —E—-—F4kt - - - -
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13.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.ZEERkAZEERaHEEN
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued) M€ o

(A) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (A) EEME ()

84

Year ended 30 June 2011

BE_2——FX AZ+HLEE

Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefits scheme
Director fees in kind contributions Total
e =a: HEY NG
EEvkn REYHM &= srEIER &t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET THTT FHET
Han Qing Yun BESE - - - -
Han Xiao Yue 5 0% - - - -
Chen Heng Long FRiEEE
(Note 1) (PEED) - - - -
Guo Yan Ni R - - - -
Long Min Fei BERATR - - - -
Xu Nian Chun R - - - -
Chan Yuk Tong R Ex
(Note 2) (Mt3E2) - 648 11 659
Li Xin Zhong s - - - -
Zhang Wen 3R X - - - -
Zhu Jing Hua N R - - - -
Total 2011 —E2——Fau - 648 11 659
Note: MiEE -

1. Resigned on 17 June 2011

2. Resigned on 24 May 2011

There were no fees and other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during the year
(2011: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years
ended 30 June 2012 and 2011.

During the year, no director (2011: Nil) has been granted
with share options in respect of their services to the
Group and further details of which were set out in note 29
to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

13.DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued)

(B) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year have not include director (2011: one), details
of whose emoluments have been disclosed in note (a)
above. The emoluments paid to the remaining five (2011:
four) non-directors, highest paid individuals for the year

“-"FFH

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

13.EEREBREHEEN
[ EAC D)

(B) AEREH AL

FA AEERZRSHFALILR
BREF(ZF——F:—%)"
HENMEFE DN LX)
BRE-FAXNTEHRER (=T
——F OR)FEF EEFAL

are as follows: Mo T
Group
x=EE
2012 2011
—E—_%f —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FA&TT
Salaries, allowances E e AD=3- 154
and benefits in kind EWH &= 1,504 1890
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 48 24
1,552 1,914

The number of the remaining highest paid individuals
whose emoluments fell within the following band is as
follows:

HpMEN FUTHENESHA
THAZT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ Z1,000,0007% 7T

During the years ended 30 June 2012 and 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid employees of the Group as an
inducement to join the Group or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

REBEE-T-——_FR-F——FX
AZtTRLFE AKEYERAE
FHEMARBERERRHEEX
N2 ERIMAREBELIMAR
SERA R K AIERRERAH(E -

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMIERERRAF

85



Annual Report 2012

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

14 ¥ -BERZE

FHRE

Furniture
and office
equipment

RER
AN RE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Machinery
Leasehold and
improvements equipment

Motor
vehicles Total

HRWREE
HK$’000

BERRME
HK$’000

THRT

THET

THT

THET

THRT

At 1July 2010 W-E-FE+f-H
Cost KA 15,651 1,706 15,572 4,293 37,222
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (14,811) (1,620) (13,466) (3,343) (33,240)
Net book amount EEFE 840 86 2,106 950 3,982
Year ended 30 June 2011 HEZZ%——F
NAZTRIEEE

Opening net book amount FNEmFE 840 86 2,106 950 3,982
Additions e - - 189 - 189
Disposal HE - - (126) (18) (144)
Depreciation Vil (415) (28) (283) (650) (1,376)
Exchange realignment Rk 90 7 376 59 532
Net book amount EEFE 515 65 2,262 341 3,183
At 30 June 2011 and RZE——F A=1H

1 July 2011 EZZ——F+A—H
Cost A 16,927 1,718 15,504 4213 38,362
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (16,412) (1,653) (13,242) (3,872) (35,179)
Net book amount EEFE 515 65 2,262 341 3,183
Year ended 30 June 2012 HE-Z2--F

NAZTHIEEE

Opening net book amount FNEmFE 515 65 2,262 341 3,183
Additions NE - - 5 - 5
Disposal HE - - (13) - (13)
Derecognised on disposal of A HEHB AR

a subsidiary HUBRER - - (29) - (29)
Depreciation il (296) (26) (175) (279) (776)
Net book amount EETE 219 39 2,050 62 2,370
At 30 June 2012 RZE-ZF A=1H
Cost KA 16,927 1,718 15,194 4213 38,052
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (16,708) (1,679) (13,144) (4,151) (35,682)
Net book amount BERE 219 39 2,050 62 2370
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For the year ended 30 June 2012

15.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Group 340

At 1 July 2010

RZE—FF

Patents and Deferred
technical development
know-how costs

BERER i HE
B i &0 8% PSR %
HK$’000 HK$’000

TEx FExT

Total

ot
HK$’000
TERT

+A—H
Cost BN 6,541 7,510 14,051
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (6,233) (7,501) (13,734)
Net book amount BREFEE 308 9 317
Year ended 30 June 2011 BHE_ZT—%F

NAZTHIEEFEE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 308 9 317
Translation adjustment & 38 & 24 9) 15
Amortisation 5 (37) - (37)
Net book amount R FE 295 - 295
At 30 June 2011 and RZZE——F

1 July 2011 NAZ=Z+THR

—E——%F

+A—H
Cost X 7R 6,856 7,510 14,366
Accumulated amortisation RET# (6,561) (7,510) (14,071)
Net book amount BREFEE 295 - 295
Year ended 30 June 2012 BHE2—_Z——4FxA8

—t+HLFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 295 - 295
Amortisation 5 (37) - (37)
Net book amount R FE 258 - 258
At 30 June 2012 N-_E——F

SNA=+8
Cost B 6,856 7,510 14,366
Accumulated amortisation E £ (6,598) (7,510) (14,108)
Net book amount RE$E 258 - 258

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE
16.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMIE AT HNER
Company
ERQF
2012 2011
—E—_f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FATT
Unlisted investments, at cost ELEMRE A 39,952 39,952
Less: Provision for impairment B R B R (26,952) (26,952)
13,000 13,000
Due from subsidiaries A NG E ] 85,110 34,920
Due to subsidiaries JERTHT B A A R IE (4,111) (4,111)
As at 30 June 2012, the balances with subsidiaries are R-ZE——FNA=1TH WEARNEG
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRIERE 2R REESREERE At
Accordingly, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are UL (FERT) B A R FRIE Th 5 AR
classified as current assets/liabilities. PEEBE-
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16.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2012 are

as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operations

ML ERITERE
BRIRBEMR HMEXERS
Direct
HiE
Vitop Bioenergy British Virgin 1 share of US$1 100%
Limited Islands (“BVI")
REEWMIEBERAR RBEXHS IBEEIETN
([EEBEX i 17
Hel)
Vitop Bioengery PRC Registered capital of -
(China) Ltd* HK$95,000,000
(“Vitop China”)
REEY (FEDER HE RN
NET ([RFEFE]) 95,000,0007% 7T
Vitop Healthcare Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 -
Product Limited each
REREEMBRAR &E REBREMBELET
B A% 9
BIERXFESE PRC Registered capital -
RBREEER of RMB5,840,000
EQEa/NCIR
A E AR A AR
5,840,0007T
* Registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprise (“WOFE”) under *
the PRC law.
*x Registered as Sino-foreign joint venture under the PRC law. *x
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16. RMIE AT NER (»)

R-E——FA=Z=+TH TEMBERQ

AmEEDT

Particulars of
issued capital/
registered capital

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Group

Principal activities

FKME
EEERESH

ETEEE
Indirect

&

— Investment holding

BEEK

100% Manufacturing
and trading of
BlOenergy®
products, and
trading of
multi-functional
water generators,
healthcare food
products and other
healthcare products

EERBEERFER®
FIER HEZY
BERUKHE - RER M
N E {2 BREE mm

100% Trading of BlOenergy®

product

HERFRRINER

80% Manufacturing and
trading of multi-
functional water
generators

EERIEEZEE
LKt

REFEZEEMRIBBELE
(MM EBERE]) -

REFEZREMATIGEDRE-
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16.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries are audited
by PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED for statutory purpose or
Group consolidation purpose.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which
have, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Company’s directors,
results in particulars of excessive length.

17.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

16. RMIE AT HNER (»)

tRAMBARNMBERRIARE (F
BB EBMARRIA /AL R
IAKEREBNEZ

EREIARROME AR ARAE
ERR HEMNBRARATIEFEARFE
MEESIEARAEEEERABHNEE
MO ARBEERA - WRHEEAMKE
NAEFABEREEYERERBER-

17 5ERBAFEIIERRS
ABNHEENMBEE

Group
EH

HK$'000
THETT

Structured notes with embedded NEMETAENERERE.

derivatives, at fair value BAFE
Balance at 1 July 2010 RZE—ZFLA—HOE 1,836
Fair value gain NSRRI 645
Maturity 2 HA (2,481)

Balance at 30 June 2011 and
30 June 2012

R-E——FRA=THK
“E-—FRA=THNER -

The structured notes with embedded derivatives as at 30
June 2010 were classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Fair value of the structured
notes with embedded derivatives as at 30 June 2010 has been
determined by reference to the quotation provided by the bank.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE

18.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. T HEREEHE

Group Company
&M FAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2—--F —E——fF —E-—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FHB T TH#T FiBTT
Equity securities: IRATE % -
— Unlisted securities —ELEMES 34,369 25,033 31,036 21,700
Less: Accumulated B RETE R
impairment loss BEEE
recognised (5,934) (5,934) (4,850) (4,850)
Exchange realignment M H % 161 161 - -
28,596 19,260 26,186 16,850
Available-for-sale financial assets of unlisted securities at the RMERR FELTELTLERBHE
end of the reporting period represent investments in companies EEREFRBKIANRARINKEE  MA
which were established in PRC. They are measured at cost less RESGEMBAAFEBEREKXN XA A
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the EERAEELURFEERFE ik
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that RERE RO ARFERT= -

the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE 19. N EATINER

2012
—E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHRT THET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG B AE 542 -
Share of post-acquisition results and JEEWEEREEER

reserves, net of dividends received i MR WA (33) -

509 -

Amounts due from associate JiE Uk Bt & R 308 3,086 -

Total &5t 3,595 -

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 91
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_ZT——FA=1+HLFE
19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 19.REERNTHER (&)
The amounts due from associate are unsecured, interest free JEWEE RARIRIBAEERR 2ERR
and are repayable on demand. DREFEE-
On 17 January 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of RZZE——F—A+tH TEEZEK
45% equity interest in JFRIIITH L {EM 225 BRI AR AR for LATR € (R {E542,0005% 7T U B8 7= I iy 2243
a cash consideration of HK$542,000. R EERMAR QA M45%MHE -
Particulars of the associates is as follows: EHEBEATMNERDT

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable
to the Group

FHEEER

Particulars of Place of EHEERank Principal

registered capital held incorporation 2012 2011 activities

FEEmEErEH R 0 R, i B B C"B——f IEEE

R T S 4T Registered capital People’s Republic 45 — Information
EEHEMERAQR RMB1,000,000 of China consultancy;

mobile phone
medical device
technology

development, sales
and other domestic

trade
HMERAARKE HEARFEAME SEAH FH—EE
1,000,000 BEMEMREE - H
EREMENE S
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19.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below:
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19. REBEE N TIRER o)

BREASERED

A ARSI T -

2012 2011

—E—_% —FT——%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TF#ET T T

Total assets BEBE 7,518 -

Total liabilities BERE (6,494) -

Net assets BEFE 1,024 -
Group’s share of net assets of associate  ZN£2 B FE{5 B & A 7

BEFE 509 -

Turnover BER 1,029 -

Loss for the year KEFEEHAE (73) -

Group’s share of results of REFREE
associate for the year JEMGEEE R RIEE (33) -

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20.INVENTORIES 20. 7€
Group
FEH
2012 2011
—E—_f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Raw materials R 4,974 5,660
Work in progress R 5,151 5,739
Finished goods BURK SR 13,474 14,709
23,599 26,108

Less: Provision for obsolete and slow- W BRE R HEK M

moving finished goods B® (4,807) (4,807)
Foreign exchange translation losses (R oR =] (231) (231)
18,561 21,070
=,
21.TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. 85 5 EEWBRFX
Group
xEE
2012 2011
2% —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET F#E T
Trade receivables B 5 WK 10,487 10,415
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (9,132) (9,132)
1,355 1,283
Before accepting any new customers, the Group will assess the REMERFEL 2 AEE KT
potential customer’s credit quality. 10% (2011: 46%) of the BEEFMNEEEZ - 10% (ZF——
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have F:46% ) WD BTN EN E 5 I
the best credit quality. ERAEREEEER-
The credit terms that the Group offers to customers are AEBE-RARFPIEHETBEAEIANE
generally not more than 90 days. BH-
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=5
21.TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B 5 BWERR )
An aged analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B ZRBERHOERR>THAT
Group
.30
2012 2011
—E—_% —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET T IT
0 — 30 days 0230H 78 370
31 - 60 days 31260H 45 215
61 to 180 days 612180H 109 382
Over 180 days #180H 1,123 316
1,355 1,283
Included in the balances are trade receivables with an EHRPEFARREHBE R BimAS
aggregate carrying amount of HK$1,232,000 (2011: BERERBRESERENERAE
HK$698,000) which are past due at the reporting date for 1,232,000 7T ( ==& — — 4 : 698,000
which the Group has not provided impairment loss as there has BIL) B S EBERE - AEBKRIELRE
been no significant change in credit quality and the amounts BEBEENFEEASEEEZTESEAE
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold &) BAMESENESRE AR 2EUKE - K
any collateral over these balances. No interest is charged on SEUTERZSERBTBEEAERR-
the trade receivables. B SRR T 5B -
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not R ERE N R E R E S FE R R R
impaired: R
Group
.30 1]
2012 2011
—E—_% —_EFT——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET T T
61 to 180 days 612180H 109 382
Over 180 days #180H 1,123 316
1,232 698
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21.TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. B S5 BWERR )
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBHEEZ D
Group
T%E
2012 2011
—E—_F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET T T
Balance at beginning of the year F U7 9,132 8,146
Foreign exchange translation losses P 5+ E51E - 392
Impairment losses recognised B R E W KIA
on receivables HEEE - 594
9,132 9,132

22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22.5T€ -FAfRIER HitLfE

RECEIVABLES W BR X

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables A2 BEAREREMEWER
Group Company
&M F0F

2012 2011 2012 2011
- —_T——% B—-_§f —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TH#T FiBTT TH#T F&T
Deposits for rental He k&G £
and utilities 423 530 196 1,753
Deposit for the ERKENB
proposed acquisition R AIHIE] S
of a subsidiary 1 15,000 - 15,000 -
Prepayments for BEENK
purchases 4,078 - - -
Dividend receivable — FEUZAR B 1,500 1,500 - -
Prepayments for EBEIEE R
potential projects SEENEN 10,723 10,723 - -
Other receivables H b fE R SR 2 17,975 21,449 = -
49,699 34,202 15,196 1,753
Less: Provision for R ER
impairment (5,120) (2,590) - -
44,579 31,612 15,196 1,753
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22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22.5T&€ FERIER HAE

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(continued)

Note 1:

On 2 August 2011, the Company entered into an agreement for
the acquisition of 90% shareholding in a company, Express Time
Enterprises Limited (“Express Time”), from an independent third party
(the “Vendor”) at the consideration of HK$108.50 million. Details of
the agreement are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 12
August 2011 and 2 April 2012.

Pursuant to the agreement, the Company would have the right to
demand full refund of the deposit if the Acquisition is eventually
unsuccessful.

Note 2:

Included in the Group’s other receivables an amount of approximately
HK$10,000,000 being a receivable from a former business partner.
In the opinion of the directors and pursuant to the Group's legal
advisor, the Group’s provision of impairment of HK$2,590,000 (2011:
HK$2,590,000) is sufficient and no further impairment is required.

Y BR FX ()
T T OB R E A R

(%)
L3N

MNZZE——FENAZR ARBIHH
LRELOSSEE LM —BBUE = ([&
75 1) Y BE — 8 A &) Express Time Enterprises
Limited ([Express Time ] ) BI90% % # - 4
BENFBHRARRBSHAE T ——FN
A+ZARZZE—Z—FMAZAMHRE-

REBEARE I WREFHEKERERINE
T ARARBEREBEEREEHI -

fe2

FE A & B H il 8 Y BR 5K #9 4910,000,000
BLTNER - BREBBHNERR-EER
BERBEAEEERER AEEEH
2,590,000/ 7t ( =% — — £ : 2,590,000/%
THMBEREBERRENBAFE - FRE-
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23.CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23.RERBITHERE
Group Company
F%E FAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E2—--F —E——fF —E—_F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET TH#T FiBTT
Cash at banks and RITRER
in hand FHEE® 41,236 10,950 1,352 26
As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBEHAR XEEBUARE (TA
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”") REIDFGFENBESRRTEFTLD
amounted to approximately HK$34,673,000 (2011: #34,673,0008 L (=2 ——&F:
HK$7,355,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other 7,355,000 7T) - AR TSR A KR
currencies. However, under the PRC Foreign Exchange BEAAMEE R E I EE IR 5K
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale M EERNEETERT  NEEE
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is B REREETIMNEEBNRITEA
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks REHBBHEMEE-
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
24.TRADE PAYABLES 24. EZ BIERR
The credit terms of trade payables varies according to the B 5 M IR (= B HIE FE 211 [F 44 fE
terms agreed with different suppliers. The ageing analysis of EHENHREE - AEBEMNESEN
the Group’s trade payables as at the balance sheet date is as XN EEBNRRY T
follows:
Group
x&H
2012 2011
—E—"F T ——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET T T
Outstanding balances with ages: RFRERE D
REEEREE
Within 30 days M30B K 342 437
Between 31 to 60 days 31&E60H 1,281 437
Between 61 to 180 days 612180H 395 525
Over 180 days #180H 4,157 2414

6,175 3,813
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25.0BLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

As at 30 June 2012, the Group had obligation under finance
lease repayable as follow:

)

“-"FFH
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25

AEREZEME

R-ZE——EXA=1TH KNEBEHE
EEMEHEZEFNT:

Present value of

Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments

REHRS(THE REASARENRE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g—-§ -T 45 —B——f -—T——f
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHIT THET FHT

Amounts payable: JE - R IE -

Within one year —F A - 52 - 51
Less: Future finance charge JH:BRE&EEEH - (1) - -
Present value of MHEAEN

lease obligation RE - 51 - 51

The average lease term is about three year. No arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

26.CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 29 September 2010, the Company issued 30 million, 3%
HK Dollor denominated convertible notes with the aggregate
principal amount of HK$30 million. Each note entitles the
holder to convert to ordinary shares at a conversion price of
HK$0.25.

Conversion may occur at any time between 29 September 2010
and 30 March 2012. If the notes have not been converted, they
will be redeemed on 30 March 2012 at HK$30 million. Interest
of 3% will be paid on the maturity date.

26.

FHOHEFHOR=F -HERKAH
SR RET LA

KRR E

RZZE—TFAA=ZF+NA  ARBE)ET
3,0008 A TTAHERI3% AT AR 1% - A
LHRER30008ET - BIHREM T
BAEFNREME0E T HI R LB
B o

ABRREBEAIR-_T-—FFAA-TN
HE-T——F=A=+tHHBETHNE
BAR-HERBERELR SR _F
— = A=1H%3,0008ETTHER
WA - 3% F S H IR A AT e
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26.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The convertible notes contain two components: liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity ot s
heading “convertible notes reserve”
of the liability component on initial recognition is 13% per

annum.

. The effective interest rate

RA %5 3R R B &E
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26. T AR EE ()

AHRREEBEME D BE N EDH

S22y

MEFRERTH [ A HBREER

BEEE] - AENRDNERN XN L E
REREFI3% -

HK$'000
TAETT

Proceeds of issue BEITHTIS A 30,000
Equity component EmIHm (3,958)
Liability component at date of issue REITEHENEEHD 26,042
Interest charge calculated at an BEBHEIZRTER

effective interest rate of 13% MEFZH 1,697
Liability component at 30 June 2011 RZE——FNA=Z+EMNEaESHD 27,739
Interest change calculated at BREBRFERIS%TEMNF REEH

an effective interest rate of 13% 1,647
Converted convertible notes into share SR EE ARG (29,386)
Liability component at 30 June 2012 RZFE-—ZF A NA=THHNEESHD -
The fair value of the convertible notes’ liability component at AgmEEREEHRHR T ——F <A

30 June 2011 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by RHL Appraisal Ltd.,

professional valuer.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERAERQA
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27.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Deferred tax liabilities

“-"FFH

] &b aE

27 B EFR 18
RAFENBEFEERNEZRELR
BEGEHEEHMT :
EEREE &

2012 2011

—2——-% =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TFHET T T

At 1 July ntER—H (654) -
Recognised directly in equity in LA MR R IE

respect of convertible notes BHERNERER - (654)

Converted Convertible notes into share HMmAIMRER ARG 654 -

At 30 June BANA=+8 - (654)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$63,281,000 (2011: HK$62,693,000) available
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
which incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability

of future profit streams.

28.SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.025 each

28.

ETE
20,000,000,000/%
FARMEEO0.025/& 7T
B E B

RBERR AEEHEERPARS

&5 1863,281,0008 T (Z & — — & :

62,693,000/87T) * Al MIEEHELZF

BB H) R A R OR SRFERR B Al © B 70 R

Hom M EETRR - BHtt - WESLZ F 1R
RIELENIAEE -

EEIN

2012
—E—_F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHRT THET

500,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid:
1,390,407,948 (2011: 882,785,961)
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each

EETRERE:
1,390,407,948/% (==&
——%:882,785,961
1% ) & #% E{50.0257%

TL R A AR

34,760 22,070

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMIERERRAF
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28.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

A summary of movements in the authorised and issued share
capital of the Company is as follows:

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

28. B 7N (&)

RARABEERBETRAZHHZ 0
T

Number of Nominal value
authorised Number of of shares
shares shares issued issued
E8T 28T
EERMBEE Bin& B BpmE
HK$’000
T&T
At 1 July 2010 and R-ZE-—FF+HA—H
30 June 2011 rZZT——%F
~NA=1+H 20,000,000,000 882,785,961 22,070
Rights issue of shares (note(a)) A% (BfsE(a)) - 294,261,987 7,356
Issued of consideration BITRERD
shares (note(b)) (FF3ED)) - 93,360,000 2,334
Converted convertible EMmAT R ER ARG
notes into shares (note(c)) (FFzE(C)) - 120,000,000 3,000
At 30 June 2012 RZZE——F,XA=+H 20,000,000,000 1,390,407,948 34,760

Note (a) On 18 July 2011, the Company has completed a rights
issue. 294,261,987 rights shares on the basis of one rights
share for every three shares held were issued pursuant to the
rights issue. Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
circular and announcement dated 24 June 2011 and 15 July
2011.

Note (b) On 19 December 2011, the Company has completed
the acquisition of 9.09% shareholding in Global Trade Center
Holdings Co. Limited. Details of the above are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2011.

Note (c) On 19 December 2011 and 31 March 2012,
30,130,000 and 89,870,000 convertible notes were converted
into ordinary shares of the Company.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEYZERER QA

@R —_ET——F+t A+ N\B K
NEFTERER -RERBRESHEE =R
B AT E L — AR L AR AR 10 RO B E B 1T
294,261,987 % (A% f% {7 o Lt I MY FF
BHERARR BRI AT ——F X
AZt+mWAR-_Z——F+tA+HAK

WEbOR—ZE——F+ZA+NA-
AN TR U B Global Trade Center
Holdings Co. Limited479.09% A% 4 o il
EEMABHN AR ERE T ——
FRHAZ+—HBHHAE-

Wi ZE——F+=Z A+ LB R
T — = HF=+—H" 30,130,000
1289,870,00017 AT 2 f% Z 45 B 4 5l 8 2
BANGLBR-
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29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME 29. [ R T E

In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
on 23 January 2003. The Scheme became effective on 10
February 2003 upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange by way of introduction and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Scheme remains
in force for ten years from that date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to participants for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which the Group has an equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”) and/or to enable the Group or an Invested Entity to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group or an Invested Entity.

The participants of the Scheme include: (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive director but not any non-executive director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
(b) any non-executive director (including any independent
nonexecutive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d)
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; and
(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any twelve-month period up
to the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

RARBRONEERAER LT - ARE
RE-BRARARRR-_FTZT=F—
AZT=ZB@BBEMNEBRER BHRMF
R —AEEOER S ([5181)) -5 8IE
B AR BB AT 4R 7 B S P AR
FHER-_ZBT=F_A+RBER
B8 (BREEHIEERIN) BE B
ATFRA—EBER-

AEIE ERAYHARERANEESABRA
BaEmEMNEE (REBR]) AMAER
MSEERH-BEHIEE K HER
SEIREERBENBELRRESE
ZREE UKW BEEASMAKXEH

HIREERE-

FHEIMZ2EEGE: (ARE HEM
MBARKEMBREERNEMESR
(THREBIRBESR BREETANTE
= HETBREAFATES)  OARQ
A HEERMBARKEMREETRHN
EAFRTES (BREMBILIFATT
BF) OAEBERIKE R RSAEM
BREEBNTAERIMBHER (d)
AEESEAREBRBNEMEL: (o)
MASBESREMTERRBIRETE
HRAHEMRMENEMALRELRE:
ROREEEFAKE AR SMEMEEE
BOEARR IAKEEAKERF
SEARE BB EITEAESFAER
FEA-

MARNBES THARITITERRS
BETABBEARTOBREAELAR
B IEMITEEFRILE - BN RE
EREE B IHEM 120 A RREAER T A
NRATERRABIIFATESTHRS
EREBE AN ERERE DEBBEAR
AIPMEAIR R 2 B TR70.1% - B1R
BARRKROARELEBNKHEFE
PfT 15 42 {868 %815,000,0007% 7T -+ BIl B 7 AR
RRELERRELME
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29.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme must not exceed
88,278,596 shares, being 10% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue on the date when the 10% Scheme limit
has been refreshed. The 10% Scheme limit was refreshed at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 30
October 2009.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each participant (including exercised and outstanding
options) in any twelve-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual
Limit must be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may
determine which shall not be more than ten years from the date
of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of an option must be
made within 28 days from the date upon which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the grant
thereof.

The subscription price of a share of the Company in respect
of any option shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be
lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a trading day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the share.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERAERQA
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29. B REFTE ()

RRBEFEAREOBEREN T X
BITWARARNDEE THEB
88,278,596M% * BN 10% 51 &I IR #8 & %1
ERAARRBEBHITRNEBNHI0% -
0%+t EIRBERARA —TTNEF+
A=+ HBTHRRFHAG LEH-

REERLE A EER121E A 8 E AP
BYTRHRTE2EENERE (21
E1TE K iE RTT B M) 1T 1R
ERTRETRITHARRRMEE
TEHEARHERARRADETRN A
BH1% ([EALR]) - LE—FRH
HBEEA LR BRE HALRRE
BRARG LA EEH2EE REY
BALBRRER-

WERTNARTESE ((EE8))T
BT 9 HA B POBR S T BAAT 62 - 1 SR
RE0 7T B8 B R B
it -

BREFEXHETN BERELEA T
15 AT AT ] SR A2 35 A HAR o

BETBEENESZLARNZERRL R
HIET28 R MER WM AR ARRMAR
B S1.00B TN AR EFKIR - ERER
THRBBRENKE-

TR RS AR ARG RE
BEHREFEERBBETE  ETFER
UMTEENRSE: @QRELBEREES
B (REARSH)BXAERRERMN
FIE R M (B ()R EE B
B AER S BB e RERM
FIE R 0 P YT B R ()R i EIME °
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Subject to earlier termination of the Company by resolution in
general meeting, the Scheme shall be valid and effective till 9
February 2013. After the expiry of such valid period, no further
options will be offered but in all other respects the provisions of
the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Binominal option
price model, taking into accounts the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The expected
volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessary be the
actual outcome. No other feature of the share options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The Company did not have any outstanding share options at 1
July 2011 and 30 June 2012. No share options were granted
during the year ended 30 June 2012.

RESERVES
Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 41 of the
financial statements.

The share premium account of the Group mainly includes: (i)
shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation scheme (the “Group
Reorganisation”) in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefore.

The convertible notes reserve represents the value of the
unexercised equity component of convertible notes issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for convertible notes in note 3.15.

“-"FFH
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29. B REFTE ()

BEE-T—=F_ANERIL &8
—HAMEARARAERRAS LIE
ERFREFRILFE -G ENERH

EiRE BTERERDEMEMER
1 MERT BRI P B B A 7 A% —
BEAATRHMA-

BRI EE TR A AMKBURE SR K
RRE EIREERN -

AHRBEER LR GEREEET B
BREm AR NOBREAFETIR
R EHRA A EREEERELE
ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬁi&%Thm
RRBENER BETRLRERS
Eﬁgﬂﬁﬁkrlﬂﬁﬁafﬁ%k
RER) ELADFr 3 o

R-_E——F+A—HE-Z—-FX
BA=4+H8 &R I EE 8 ARITER
fRiE-REi e —E2——FA=1THIt

FEAILER L BAAE -
30. 514
AEE

AEERNAFELBEFENF B
LREBEFHNUWBHRRFIANGE
BEEEHRA-

AEEROEEREIEZRE: VAEE
BITORD RNVRBE/ABELRRBIK
B X PRI R IR AR L e EAER S
(IEEEA]) AERBHE AR MRARE
EERBERBRMBITHARARAEE
H)Z %A o

AR B A RIEM E3. 155 Al
BREBRANOSTBRRMER BEARQ
BT AR RIERRITRER AN
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30.RESERVES (continued) 30.7% &

106

Group (continued)

The option reserve represents the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees and consultants of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for equity-
settled share-based payments in note 3.12(ii).

The Group’s capital reserve represented the amount of retained
earnings of Vitop China applied for the increase in its registered
and paid-up capital.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to
WOFE, Vitop China, being the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is required to transfer 10% of their profit after tax, if
any, to the statutory reserve until the balance of the fund reach
50% of their respective registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory reserve may be used to offset against their respective
accumulated losses.

AEE (%)

FE PR 1 18 O AR IR B RE3. 1 2Gi0) 3R A B D)
ST EY 1R B Fr BN IR M B 2 AT BRCR P RE
R-ETASEEER KR BRED
BERSEARITERENATFE

R B E A (R 4R RIS IR A
At REBEANKEFERFTDNE
B

HREMERNIINEBELENTEMS
Bl ARBEEMBRBRFHEEE
BHRBRBZEN (NF)B10% 2 EE [
B EEESEREERNESANEM
BARHI50% © AR 956 BE o B AR O AT Et Ay
ETRS - EEFREIBFEHERES
B RIEEE -

Company KT
Capital  Convertible
Share  redemption note Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
g% EEER
KRR R [ £ 0 1% 6 05 2RER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL TAL FTAET
At 1 July 2010 R-E-ZF+A—H 75,211 29 - (42,899) 32,341
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (24,391) (24,391)
Issue of convertible notes ~ Z{T AT Z & - - 3,958 - 3,958
Deferred tax liabilities BTABRBREEN
on issue of convertible BEVHEEE
notes - - (654) - (654)
At 30 June 2011 and RZE——%XA
1 July 2011 =tHK
—2——F+HA—H 75,211 29 3,304 (67,290) 11,254
Loss for the year rEEERE - - - (5,898) (5,898)
Issue of shares £l 69,227 - - - 69,227
Converted convertible notes B [ R &
into shares AR 30,344 - (3,304) - 27,040
At 30 June 2012 RZFE——F
~NAZ=TH 174,782 29 - (73,188) 101,623

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30.RESERVES (continued)

31.

Company (continued)

The share premium account of the Company mainly includes:
(i) shares issued at a premium; and (ii) the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
and the value of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation. Under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium account
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Disopsal of subsidiary

On 11 January 2012, the Group disposed of its 100% owned
subsidiary, FEXFHFEHEBR A F at the consideration of
HK$108,000. The net assets of that subsidiary at the date of
the disposal were as follows:

“-"FFH
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30. 1% o)

31.

ARTF (8

ARABBEMEEREZRRE: ()ARE
BTG RNREEEEA B1F
REBEMERAR D BITRAMBITHAR
AR AT EEMEENEARREEE
FENEZE - REFASHEERRNAR22
BE(-NAR—FFR0 BHEEE
) REERHEZRERENAEH
B ARBFBERIEEEATELS
T2 B HI R B 75 - BRI A0 048 (B Bk AT 29 TR
FTARRBBIR -

HE—HNELRNER
e — R 2 =

RZF——F—-A+—H XEEEZK
{B108,0008 THEHEZEHAME AT
RERFHHEARAF -REEBRH
ZMBE AR ZEEFBUT:

HK$'000
TAETT

Property, plant and equipment Y% B K& 29
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AR AR 117
Inventories FE 406
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTET 22
Trade and other payables 2 5 R E M EMRK (256)
Net assets disposed of FrHECcEERE 318

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31.LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 3l1.HE—RBKEBATMNEIRE

(continued) (&)
Disopsal of subsidiary (continued) HE—RBHEBAR (8
HK$’000
FHT
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RBEAFNEE:
Consideration received and receivable B WA E 108
Less: Net assets disposed of BBEHEEEFE (318)
Cumulative exchange differences in BRKENBRARIEGEEZBEREN
respect of the net assets of the SEERRMNREENBENERQR
subsidiary reclassified from equity EEFENZEELZE
to profit or loss on loss of control of
subsidiary (413)
Loss on disposal HEFIAEIR (623)
Net Cash outflow on disposal of HE—HREARMNRERHBEH

a subsidiary

Consideration received and receivable in AR &MWL SEMZMHH

cash and cash equivalents B EUER SRR E 108

Less: cash and cash equivalent balances B BEHEMNBE & MBS EELET
disposed of (22)
86

108 VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2012

32.COMMITMENTS

(A) Operating lease commitment

The Group leases certain of its offices, factory and
machinery and equipment under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements with lease terms ranging
from one to five years. As at 30 June 2012, the total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

“-"FFH
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32. 73
(A) EBERE

REBRBETIRBECEHERY
MEEETEFE TR LS

BB HEFHNT—ZERF-
RZE—Z—FNA=Z+H TaAHE
HEEAONENARSERSE

operating leases are payable as follows: BT
Group
x&E
2012 2011
—E—_% —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —F RN 1,145 1,965
In the second to fifth years FE_FZFRHF 1,499 1,588
2,644 3,553

The Company did not have any significant operating lease
arrangements as at the end of the reporting period (2011:
Nil).

33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Neither the Group nor the Company had any significant
contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

RRABRHEHRY BEFERE
EHEZH (ZT——F &)

3.5 RAE

R¥REHR AEB AR AL EAE
BERSAEE
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34.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. EFXERERE

110

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

Gearing ratio

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. During
the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group’s strategy, which
was unchanged from previous years, was to reduce the
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated based on total debt and
shareholders equity.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

AEEEREANBRER/BREHRD
H REMEDTE AR S R AER
REEAREEUURIEE AR A -

AEBNEARBREEH KA RN
BARMEER EPBREDETHRA [
o MR TF i A

EXEELR

HETHENE AR EAEENY
— ) BEERERERARARESHE
AAEHOAR RBE-T——FX
A=+ELLEE AEEHEEK (RBE
FELEE(L) AREERAKLE 4
78 18 L 3 T BA 7% 40 5 R R A 2t

2011

—E—_F —E——%F

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#ET T T

Total debt BB 21,070 27,790
Shareholders’ equity [i% B 7 117,571 29,743
Gearing ratio BEREEL X 17.92% 93.43%

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions with certain

related parties:

(A)

(B)

“-"FFH
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IL.BEALRS

BRI mREMEBOAMRESEI A%
BEETHEATETTINEARS:

(A)

2012 2011
—E—%f —E——F
HK$'000

FHEIT

HK$’000
THT

Rental expenses to NHFATATHHASHAS
— a minority equity holder of —ZA&RRQ&EIMERQFH

a subsidiary of LEEREEA

the Company (i) 450 529
Notes: iik=s

()

The Group’s transaction with a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary of the Company was made in accordance with

the mutually agreed terms.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group:

() AEBERALFNSAFNIEER R
R 1705 5 Th RIR S T a0 Ik
e

(B) ﬁ%IE%EAEE’\J%ﬁ

2012
e

2011
—ET——%F
HK$’000
T T

HK$’000
THT

Total remuneration of FRESNHM
directors and other FEEHEAB
members of key ORIl FOE
management during
the year
— Short term employee - RHRERF
benefits 1,161 2,538
— Pension scheme — RIS FT B
contribution 24 35
1,185 2,573

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. R TR
(A) Categories of financial instruments (A) @I EEE
Group
*THEE
2012 2011
—E—_% —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#T T T
Financial assets MEEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 28,596 19,260
Trade receivables 5 e ER X 1,355 1,283
Deposits and other receivables 1% K E b e UL BR 3R 44,579 25,871
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTET 41,236 10,950
115,766 57,364
Financial liabilities HEBER
Trade payables B S EMNER 6,175 3,813
Accrued liabilities and EitBaER
other payables H b fETER R 5,616 14,161
Deposits received BWET & 9,279 9,404
Obligation under finance lease BMEMECZEME - 51
Convertible notes EIEAY &8 - 27,739
21,070 55,168
(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) srEAMEEEEREE
policies
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial AEBEEMTENEZRR ATIS
instruments are market risk (including interest rate risk, Rk (BIEFEE R - INERE R &
foreign exchange risk and other price risk), credit risk EmERRR) EERR LR
and liquidity risk. The management reviews and agrees EsRB - BEEEFEHNLIBEER
policies for managing each of these risks and they are BHEZEFRBOEE ZFBER
summarised below. AR o
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €M T A (»)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) e EMEEBEEREEK
policies (continued) (&)
Market risk 4% 2l B
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial AEBEREE T EMERINEERK
risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, FEEREEREHELENDR
interest rates and equity prices. [ Bz o
Market risk exposures are measured by sensitivity MiGRABAGRESITFE - A&
analysis. There has been no change to the Group’s EFAZN TS RRIALEEEE
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it KEt 2Ry 75 X I M o

manages and measures the risk.

Interest rate risk management F F 7 Bz & 2
Except as disclosed below, the Group’s income and B T XPTHR BE & SN AN B AU A
operating cash flows are substantially independent of &R mEB NI HIBLIN
changes in market interest rates. MGF L) o
The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk mainly arises from AEEMBRERENERRFER
bank balances. The Group regularly seeks out the most RITEFEE AEBTHAHR
favourable interest rates available for its bank balances. THEEFSRKGEEOFE EZTE
Bank balances issued at variable rates expose the Group FIRERRITE TSRS B AR
to cash flow interest rate risk. Information relating to the ZHReEREFNERAR -BHEAEE
interest rates and terms of the Group’s bank balances are RIRITHE TR R REROER
disclosed in Notes 23. As at 30 June 2012, if the market BT3B - R ——F X
interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower with A=+8 fwmHH =G, 6D
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the SOMEEE:  MATE EMEHERFT
year would have been HK$206,000 (2011: HK$54,000) g BARFERBREBEMERLD,
lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest # 51206,0008 7T (ZF ——F ¢
income on bank balances and cash net off with higher/ 54,0008 7T)  F EHRRITEF
lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. MR &8 FI B U A, R F
)M R AE R F B F L 0,
S AT ER -
The Group’s financial liabilities are issued at fixed interest REBMHBABEREITBRRKRE
rate which merely comprise convertible notes and finance BELRBMERE REFEF EKETo
lease. Accordingly, management considers the Group has At BERERANEEEBY S
no significant fair value interest rate risk from financial BEMNATEFERBRIETERX -
liabilities.
The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to 2R 5 B 07 48 5T 37 (T {a] B R b HR ¥ )k
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks. B R @ g o
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign exchange risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated primarily in Renminbi, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:

RA %5 3R R B &E

HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

36.@ I A
(B) tRiE R EEBAERKE
(@)
9P BB /L 15

AEBETHEBRARBAINEET
WEE SAREEAZINERR-
AEBENEEIEUARKE"
ML AREBAZINERR - NEE
W EAL A ENEPBR -

AREBNHE BBMUINETENE
BEEREBRABENEREENAT

2012 2011
—g—=f% —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT FAE T
Assets BE
RMB AR 99,882 59,039
Liabilities afE&E
RMB AR 36,870 39,046
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HE-_ZT——FA=1tHLFE

36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36.2E T A
(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) e EMEEBEEREEK
policies (continued) (&)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk
management

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, and adjusts their translation at the period end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign
operations within the Group where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of
the lender or the borrower. A negative number below
indicates a decrease in profit where the Hong Kong
dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For
a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and the balances below would be
positive.

ARBHNZE
it F) K B 1R

Impact of RMB
Profit and loss*

Sh I B R Y B R AT

TRETIAREBEE T ARREINE
THE R EZE5% B E - A A&
T BREIEABREIE R PTER
AOBREELL Q5% HAERE
BRI rAIEE AL IRMEXRES -
BRE DT BIE H AR TR M IMNEFT
BEEBHEE HEREFRMRNBE
FEER FEHS%E TR - GURED
TR EREINBER R A EEREI
EBRENER MARERAN
R REAT EEIAINNE G

B THED % i M B D BREE © fi
AL EBEES% mA e
HIRER D ANSZEEE M 5
BRI R IEEC

2012 2011
k- - k- 3 —F——%

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER TR

3,151 1,000

# This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on
receivables and payables denominated in RMB.

#  TEREUARBEENEKREK
B B 15 52 #1 A RR R I B A R AR
FfT EE A R g2 o
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Other price risks

The Group is exposed to price risks through its holding of
non-current investments.

Other price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risks at the reporting date.
If the market price of the non-current investments has
been 10% higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the profit for the year ended 30 June, 2012
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$2,860,000
(2011: HK$1,926,000) for the Group. This is mainly due
to changes in fair value of non-current investments.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs period credit
evaluations of its customers. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and debt investments at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

VITOP BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
REEMERAERQA
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HE_ZT

——EXA=THILEE

36.@ I A

(B) R EAREEHEE

ZEREEK
(%)

At B 1% /a2

AEERFEFRBREMAZE
&R o

Bt B 8BE

AT 8RE DT IR IR R4 B 5
FTASNERRRMET - HIER
BIREMNTE LA TE10%MmET
EHMEHEFTE HEE-FT

——EXNA=ZTHEILEELXAER
B9 355 ) 5 38 hn R 4> 492,860,000
BT (ZZ——4%:1,926,000/%
TL) W EEHRIERBINE D
N EEEF -

= & Bz

R-E——FRXA=1H X&H
AZXZGHFARAEBITEEMEER
MHBENEREERR  ZXE
e MBI R P & TR E R
BEENREE-

AEEE -—EBREREMIHE
FTEELERIENETR MAKE
SEHHEEERPNEENRR 11
Sh - REBERBERSE BRI
BEENEZEREAIEBREN
A O SR AR LT A W
BIFH R AREREERE LT
H ARAREERR/RAEENEE
e\ B 2 R KR > o

AR SHF EEBEREEF R
BRETREEEFRNRT R
BESWEERRAR-

HRERBESHFRRNESEEER
AOBRRTMAREEEPRAR
S REBYEEMEMENEE
&R E R
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For the year ended 30 June 2012 HE-_T-—F#XA=tRAILFE
36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36.EW T H s
(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) e EMEEBEEREEK
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk HEBEZ E R
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet MEBE SRR Ta$‘§@ﬂ< ERETIR

its current obligations when they fall due.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through
the maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities loans and
commitments as the Group. The Group also monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. In addition, standby credit facilities are established
to provide contingent liquidity support.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

ﬁ JﬁE1EI/E\E}JH R

AEERBEREAEERREE
%‘E\L@\ ,\W\&%yﬁmm@)é%
RBHEENEELX FERE
Amﬁﬁé#ﬂ/$%lﬁA?
REFRE MRS SEMRENER
BRARFEBHKF  RENAEHE
MEERRERSRERDHOR
Bt AEBNTRRIEREE
BURHESRDES IR

TERFNAKEH THOTHAED
BHEHA - WRTIREAEER
ARERKEEVHRENKTBH
MHBRENARTRASRERE -
HERBEMERAEHRSRE -

The Group x5H
Weighted
average Total
effective Within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 to 5 year cash flows value
miEFsy E 3k
j ik —£R F_ELF HENEEH REE
% HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET FiEgn FTET
At 30 June 2012 RZE—Z%F
/ \ H — + E
Non-interest bearing ~ T&F & - 21,070 - 21,070 21,070
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36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €/ TR
(B) Financial risk management objectives and (B) e EMEEBEEREEK
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBELEE (&)
The Group (continued) xEE(B)
Weighted
average Total
effective Within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 to 5 year cash flows value
JNEE EiiEs]
B F = —£R  FE-ZRE BLAK EHEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT BT T
At 30 June 2011 RZE——%F
~A=ZTE
Non-interest bearing i B - 27,378 - 27,378 27,378
Variable interest raise A& FIREET A
instruments 13 30,051 - 30,051 27,790
57,429 - 57,429 55,168

Fair value of financial instruments TR T AN FE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities BEERMBEEENRTEIZNU

are determined as follows: THRETE:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial (i) SEBEEIRREGHRE LR
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and ERABMEXINPBEE
traded on active liquid markets are determined with EXRMBEENRAFENZ
reference to quoted market prices; and EfmmisERET &

(i) the fair value of other financial assets and (i EMMBEELAMBEEEDN
financial liabilities are determined in accordance NEEDREATERGIE
with generally accepted pricing models based on BMEXSMERKFEA
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates BABBENITEBRSRED
from observable current market transactions as W B ARFTERANETE -
input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERAE NEAUBHRERANLE

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the M BEEE LG EENREESR

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair HERAFEMRSE-

values.
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37.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 37. K EHAEREE
PERIOD
There are no events after the reporting period of material AR ME KEIH-
importance.
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Year ended 30 June
BEXNA=1THLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—g——f —IT——F —FT-IFTF —ZTTNF —ZTTN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TH#T FET T FHBT FHBIT
Revenue ez 20,484 27,217 67,540 88,062 111,137
Loss before Income tax BRETSIRAIEE (20,039) (23,502) (18,898) (6,132) (9,356)
Income tax expenses FIBMAX - - (166) (172) (679)
Loss for the year REEEIE (20,039) (23,502) (19,064) (6,304) (10,035)
Attributable to: THIATEA:

Owners of the Company KABER A (19,860) (23,315) (19,104) (6,440) (10,225)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥ZR AR 4 25 (179) (187) 40 136 190
(20,039) (23,502) (19,064) (6,304) (10,035)

At 30 June

BARBA=+H

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—2—F —IZT——F —Z=-TF ZTTHAFE ZZETN\F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi#xT T FHET FHETT TFHETT
Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets EERE 140,550 87,653 85,888 92,834 84,102
Total liabilities BEER (21,070) (55,822) (36,279) (25,623) (26,292)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR (1,909) (2,088) (2,275) (2,235) (2,099)
Equity attributable to VAN/NEIEZ RSN
Owners of the Company EIEE 117,571 29,743 47,334 64,976 55,711
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